Pinetree

SECURITIES

CHUONG TRINH HQP PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023
THE AGENDA OF 2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Thai gian Noi dung
Time Contents of the meeting

Pon khich va kiém tra tw cach ¢é dong /Welcome guests and shareholder’s verification:
8:30+9:00 | o Don tiép va dang ky dai biéu /Welcome guests and guests’ registration;
o  Phét tai liéu cho c6 dong /Distribute documents to shareholders.

Khai mac DPai hgi /Meeting opening:

o Tuyén b khai mac /Announce the opening ;

o Théng qua bién ban kiém tra tu cach c6 dong /Approve the Report on shareholder’s

9:00 +9:30 verification;

o  Cir Chu toa Pai hoi va Thu ky Dai hdi /Appointing Chairperson and Secretary of the GMS;

o  Bau ban kiém phiéu /Election of the voting committee;

o  Thoéng qua Chuong trinh hop /Approval on GMS agenda.

Trinh bay vé cac ni dung nghi su tai Pai hdi va Chii tea Pai hi xin y kién biéu quyét caa

PHDCD:

To present the contents to be discussed at the GMS and the Chairperson manage to collect

opinions at the GMS:

1. Quy ché T4 chiic, Biéu quyét va Bau cir caa Pai hoi/the Regulation on organization, Vote

and Elect at the GMS.

Béo cao cua Hoi dong Quan tri /Report of the Board of Directors;

Béo cao cua Tong Giam ddc /Report of the General Director;

Béo céo cua Ban Kiém soat /Report of the Board of Supervisors;

To trinh Téng hop cua Hoi dong Quan tri /General proposal of the Board of Directors;

To trinh caa Hoi dér)g quan tri vé trién khai va thuc hién kinh doanh chiing khoén phai sinh

va hoat déng cung cap dich vu bu trtr, thanh toan giao dich chung khoén phai sinh;

Proposal of the Board of Directors for deploying and implementing the derivatives

business and derivatives clearing and settlement services;

7. To trinh ciia Hoi dong Quan tri vé Mién nhiém thanh vién HDQT, BKS nhiém ky 2021-
2023 va bau thanh vién HDQT, BKS nhiém ky 2023-2026;
Proposal of the Board of Directors for Dismissal of members of BOD and BOS for the term
of 2021-2023 and election of members of BOD and BOS for the term of 2023-2026;

8. Céc noi dung khéc (néu c) phii hop véi Biéu 1é va phap luat lién quan.
Other contents (if any) in accordance with the Charter and relevant law.

9:30 +10:30

o ok w

Giai dap y kién thiic mic cia cd dong (néu cd) va biéu quyét thong qua cac van dé tai Dai
10:30 + 10:45 | hoi.
To answer shareholders’ queries (if any) and to vote at GMS on the above contents.

Nghi giai lao

10:45 +11:00
Tea break

Bé mac Pai hi /Meeting closing:
o  Cong bd Bién ban kiém phiéu /Declaration of voting results;

11:00+11:30 | o  Théng qua Bién ban hop va Nghi quyét PHPCD /Approval on the Minutes and Resolutions
of the GMS;

o Tuyén bb bé mac Dai hoi /Making speech to close the GMS;

Luu v: Tét ca tai ligu lién quan dén Dai hoi ddng cb dong thuong nién nam 2023 da duoc cap nhat trén Website cong ty: (http:/www.pinetree.vn),
Quy cb dong tai cac biéu mau va tai lisu DPHDCD thuong nién nam 2023 tir dia chi nay.

Note: All of related documents of 2023 AGM was disclosured on Pinetree’s webpage and available at http:/www.pinetree.vn. Shareholders can
download all of documents of 2023 AGM from this website.
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Pinetree

SECURITIES

GIAY UY QUYEN THAM DU VA BIEU BIEU QUYET
TAI PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023
LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ATTENDING, VOTING
AT THE 2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Kinh giri: CONG TY CO PHAN CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE
To:  PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION

TN CO ONE: covvveeeeeseeveeeie ettt s et st bbbttt

ID/Passport/Business registration certificate NO:..........ccccocvviiiiiinnenn dated: ..o DY e

Ngudi dai dién theo PhAP WAt (@07 VOT 10 CRIEC): ......vveeveeeeeveeeeeerseeeseeeeeeesveeies e ss s
Legal representative (fOr Organization): .........cciiiiiieiieii ettt te e e e e e s reesteesreesteeaeenseeneennee e

PIa Chi: oo Pién thoai: ...ccccovvviiviee
ALUIESS: . bbb bbbt Tel

THE NUMDBDET OF OWNEE SNATES ;.o ettt et ettt e et et e e s et et e er et et e er et erees et et e erereenearereanearereanearereerennes

T6i/ Chung toi dong ¥ ty quyén cho ngudi ¢6 tén dudi day thay mat tdi/ching t6i tham du va biéu quyét véi toan bo sb
cb phan ma tbi/ching tdi s¢ hitu tai Dai hoi ddng C6 déng Thudng nién nam 2023 cia Cong ty C phan Chimg khoan
Pinetree.

I/We agree to authorize the below person for and on my/our behalf, and representing entire shares held by me/us, to
attend, vote and elect in the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Théng tin ngwoi dwge iy quyén /Information of authorize:

o HO VAN INAIME: ....viiiiie ettt ettt e srbeesare e

o CMND/HO chiu $6: ....ovvevveerveereereseereseeresiens CAP NEAY: wveoveveereererererernnen 1:1 TR URRURRPRRPRN
ID/PasSPOrt NO:.....coiirieiiirieecceeeee s Dated: ...ocooveeieeieee DY o,

o PiIa Chi: oo Dién thoai: ccooeiiiieiiiiece e
AUTESS: ..o Tel:

Gidy ty quyén nay cd hiéu luc trong sudt thoi gian tb chirc va dién ra cudc hop Dai hoi dong C6 dong Thuong nién
nam 2023 vao ngay 05/05/2023 ciia Cong ty C6 phan Chimg khoan Pinetree va chi chim dirt hiéu luc sau khi cugc hop
két thdc. Nguoi duge iy quyén khong duoc iy quyén lai cho ngudi thi ba.

This letter of authorization is only valid during the 2023 Annual General Meeting held on May 05, 2023 and will cease
to be effective after the meeting ends. The authorized person is not authorized to the third person.

T6i/Chlng t6i hoan toan chiu trich nhiém vé viéc ity quyén nay va cam két tuan thii nghiém chinh cac quy dinh hién
hanh ctia phap luat va Diéu 1¢ ciia Cong ty C6 phan Chimg khoan Pinetree, dong thoi, cam két khong dua ra bat cir
khiéu nai v&/hogc tranh chdp nao dbi véi Cong ty.

I/We are fully in charge about this authorization and commit strictly comply with the laws and regulations of Pinetree
and commit to not give any complaint against the Company.

Cb ddng iy quyén /Authorizer Nguoi dwoge ity quyén /Authorizee
(ky, ghi rd ho tén va dong dau (néu c6)) (Ky va ghi 15 ho tén)
(Sign, full name and seal (if any)) (Sign, full name)

®@: Theo danh sach c6 déng tai ngay chdt 10/04/2023 /Based on the list of shareholders as at the record date 10/04/2023
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Pinetree
SECURITIES
GIAY UY QUYEN THAM DU VA BIEU QUYET TAI PAI HOI PONG CO
PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023
LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ATTENDING, VOTING AT THE 2023
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Kinh giti:  CONG TY CO PHAN CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE
To: PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION

Hom nay, ngay I 12023, 12l oo , chung t6i 1a nhiing c6 dong ciia Cong ty C6 phan
Chirng khoan Pinetree c0 tén trong danh sach dudi day:

Today, [ 12023, 8t oo , We are shareholders of Pinetree Securitiies Corporation as
follow list:

S6 c6 phan s
STT Ho tén S6 CMTND hitu @ Dia chi lién hé Ky tén

No Full name ID No. The number of Address Signature
owned shares

Cung nhat tri Gy quyén cho /Agreeing to authorize:

QLTI T LY L (L AT
ID NO i dated:.....coccoveiiiie e DY

0 [0 =TT

Puoc thay mit chung t6i tham dy tham du va biéu quyét véi todn bd sb cd phan ma ching t6i s¢ hitu tai Dai hoi
ddng C6 dong Thudng nién nam 2023 ciia Cong ty C6 phan Chimg khoan Pinetree.

For and on our behalf, and representing entire shares held by us, to attend and vote in the 2023 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Gidy iy quyén nay c6 hiéu luc trong sudt thoi gian té chirc va dién ra cudc hop Pai hoi ddng C6 dong Thudng nién
nam 2023 vao ngay 05/05/2023 ciia Cong ty C6 phan Chimg khoan Pinetree va chi cham dut hiéu Iuc sau khi cudc
hop két thic. Ngudi duge iy quyén khong dugc iy quyén lai cho nguoi thir ba.

This letter of authorization is only valid during the 2023 Annual General Meeting held on May 05, 2023 and will
cease to be effective after the meeting ends. The authorized person is not authorized to the third person.

Chiing t6i hoan toan chiu trach nhiém vé viéc tiy quyén ndy va cam két tuan tha nghiém chinh cic quy dinh hién
hanh caa Phép luat va Diéu 1& ciia Cong ty C6 phin Chimg khoan Pinetree, dong thdi cam két khong dura ra bat ctr
mot khiéu nai, kién cao gi ddi voi Cong ty.

I/We are fully in charge about this authorization and commit strictly comply with the laws and regulations of
Pinetree and commit to not give any complaint against the Company.

CHU KY XAC NHAN CUA NGUOI PUQC UY QUYEN
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZEE

(@: S8 ¢6 phan s6 hitu theo danh sach ¢ dong tai ngay chét 10/04/2023 /Based on the list of shareholders as at the record date
10/04/2023.




CONG TY CP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION Péc 1ap - Tw do - Hanh phc

_________________ SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence — Freedom — Happiness

HaNoi, [/ /2023 /Hanoi, 2023
QUY CHE TO CHUC, BIEU QUYET VA BAU CU
TAI PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023

REGULATION ON ORGANIZATION, VOTE AND ELECTION AT THE 2023 GMS

Cudc hop Pai hoi dong Co6 dong thuong nién nam 2023 (“PHPCD”/“Pai hi”) ciia Cong ty CO phan Ching
khoan Pinetree (“Cong ty”) dugc tién hanh theo quy dinh nhu sau:

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 (“GMS”/”Meeting”) of Pinetree Securities
Corporation (“Company ) is conducted under the following regulations:

.
1.

THAM DU DAI HOI/ PARTICIPATION

Cb d6ng tham dy Pai hoi bang cach tham gia truc tiép, Gy quyén cho t6 chirc, ca nhan khac tham duy
hodc giri Phiéu biéu quyét/Phiéu 14y y kién biéu quyét (sau day goi chung 1a “Phiéu biéu quyét”)
va/hoidc Phiéu bau cir ¢én cudce hop thong qua gui thu, fax, thu dién tir hodc hinh thirc khéc theo quy
dinh caa Cong ty. Viéc ty quyén phai thuc hién theo miu vin ban oy quyén ciia Cong ty. Ngudi dugc
lty quyén t6i dw DPHDCP phai xuat trinh vin ban ity quyén ban géc.

A Shareholder participates in the Meeting by directly attending or authorizing another organization or
individual to attend the meeting or sending his/her Voting Paper/Poll Card (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Voting Paper ”) and/or Election Card to the GMS by post, fax, email or other means
specified by Company. The authorization must follow the authorization form notified by the Company.
The authorized person attending the GMS must present the original authorization document.

Cb dong hodc Nguoi duoc tly quyén cua Co dong (sau day goi chung 1a “Co dong”) khi vao phong Pai
ho6i phai ngdi dung vi tri hodc khu vuc do Ban t6 chirc Pai hdi huéng din; Khdng hat thude 14 trong
phong Pai hoi; Khdng dé chudng dién thoai trong llc dién ra Dai hoi.

A Shareholder or an authorized person of a Shareholder (hereinafter referred collectively to as the
“Shareholder ) must sit in the right position or area guided by the Meeting Organizing Committee after
entering the Meeting room, do not smoke and leave the phone ringing during the Meeting;

Cb dong dén dy DPHDCD sau khi cudc hop khai mac phai thuc hién cac thu tuc ding ky tham du
DHDCPD vé6i Ban t6 chirc va co quyén tham gia biéu quyét ngay sau khi hoan tat ding ky. Chu toa Dai
hoi khong c6 trach nhiém ding DPHPCD dé cho C6 dong diang ky va hiéu luc cua cac ndi dung di duoc
biéu quyét trude d6 khong thay ddi va khong bi anh hudng.

A Shareholder attends the GMS after the Meeting opening must carry out the procedure for registration
to attend the GMS with the Organizing Committee and has the right to vote immediately after
completing the registration. The Chairperson of the GMS is not responsible for stopping the GMS for a
Shareholder to conduct his/her registration and the validity of the previous voting contents remains
unchanged and not be affected.

Cb dong phai nghiém tic chap hanh Quy ché T chirc, Biéu quyét va Bau cir cia PHDCD (“Quy ché
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Té chive”) ndy, ton trong két qua lam viéc cua DPHPCD va su didu hanh cia Chi toa DPHDPCD, dong
thoi, thuce hién theo cac huéng dan khac cia Ban td chirc Dai hoi nhim bao dam hiéu qua caa cudc hop
DPHDCD.

Shareholders must strictly abide by this Regulation on Organization, Vote and Election at the GMS
("Organization Regulation™), respect the results of the GMS and the management of the Chairperson of
the GMS, follow other instructions of the Organizing Committee to ensure the effectiveness of the GMS.

PIEU KIEN VA PHUONG THUC TIEN HANH PAI HQI /CONDITION AND METHOD OF
CONDUCTING THE MEETING

Piéu ki¢n tién hanh Pai hpi /Condition of conducting the Meeting

Cudc hop PHPCD duoc tién hanh khi c6 sé C6 dong tham du hop theo hinh thirc quy dinh tai Muc 1.1
Quy ché Té chirc nay dai dién cho trén 50% tong sé phiéu biéu quyét cua Cong ty.

The GMS is held when the number of Shareholders attending the meeting, by the method provided in
Section 1.1 herein, represents more than 50% of the total votes of the Company.

Phwong thirc tién hanh Pai hdi /Method of conducting the Meeting

Cudc hop PHDCD sé lan luot dugc tién hanh theo ting noi dung cia Chuong trinh hop PHPCD.

The GMS will be conducted according to the order of contents of the GMS Agenda.

BIEU QUYET /VOTING

Nguyén tic /Principles

Cb dong biéu quyét truc tiép tai Pai hoi, Gy quyén cho t chirc, ca nhan khéc biéu quyét hoic giri Phiéu
biéu quyét va/hoic Phiéu bau ctr vé Pai hoi trong truong hop khoéng tham du truc tiép.

A Shareholder gives his/her vote directly in the Meeting, authorizes other organization or individual to
vote, or sends his/her Voting Paper and/or Election Card to the Meeting in case of not attending
directly.

Phiéu biéu quyét va Phiéu bau ctr hop 18 s& c6 gia tri dé tinh ty 18 biéu quyét va ty 18 bau ctr. Phiéu biéu
quyét va Phiéu bau cir dugc coi 1a hop 18 khi dap ung duoc cac tidu chuan sau:

The valid Voting Papers and Election Cards will be used for calculating the voting and election rate. A
Voting Paper and an Election Card are considered valid if satisfying the following criteria:

La phiéu do Ban t6 chitc PHDCD phat hoic giri cho C6 dong, duoc in va dong dau bai Cong ty, khong
bi rach, tdy, x6a, sira chira cac ndi dung trong phiéu.

Be distributed or sent by the GMS's Organizing Committee to Shareholders, printed and sealed by the
Company, and its contents must not be torn, erased or changed.

Pugc C6 dong dién thong tin biéu quyét theo dung quy dinh. C6 dong khong duge dién vao nhiéu &
trong ciing mot ndi dung biéu quyét hodc bo tréng khdng dién 6 nao.

Being filled in voting information by Shareholders in compliance with regulations. Shareholders are not
allowed to fill in multiple boxes in the same voting content or to leave all boxes blank.

Pugc C6 dong bo phiéu hodc giri phiéu vé cho Cong ty dung thoi gian quy dinh tai Quy ché T chuc
nay.

Be voted or sent to the Company by the Shareholders on time according to this Organization
Regulations.

D6i véi Co ddng bicu quyét truc tiép tai Dai hoi: TUy theo timg nodi dung biéu quyét, Co déng biéu
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quyét bang cach gio Thé biéu quyét va bo Phiéu biéu quyét, Phiéu bau cir vao hom phiéu.

For Shareholders voting directly at the Meeting: Depending on the voting content, Shareholders vote by
raising the Voting Cards and putting the Voting Papers, Election Cards into the voting box.

M&i CH dong dugc cap mot Thé biéu quyét, mot Phiéu biéu quyét va mot Phiéu bau ctr (néu c6). Trén
Thé biéu quyét ghi rd ho tén C6 dong, ma sé C6 dong?, s phiéu biéu quyét ciia Co dong do6. Trén Phiéu
biéu quyét, ngodi cac thong tin nhu Thé biéu quyét con c6 cac noi dung biéu quyét theo Chuong trinh
hop cia PHDCP. Trén Phiéu bau cir ghi 18 ho tén C6 dong, mi s6 Co dong, s6 c¢d phan so hitu, s6 phiéu
bau.

Each Shareholder will receive one Voting Card, one Voting Paper and one Election Card (if any). The
Voting Card has full name of the Shareholder, the Shareholders code and the number of votes of that
Shareholder. The Voting Paper must have information as same as provided in Voting Card and also
voting contents according to the agenda of the GMS. The Election Card contain shareholders code, the
number of owned shares or represented, the number of voting right.

Dbi véi C6 ddng khong tham du DPHDCD tryc tiép: C dong biéu quyét bang cach guri Phiéu biéu quyét,
Phiéu bau cir kém Thdng bao mai hop ban gbc vé Pai hoi, trong d6, Phiéu biéu quyét va Phiéu bau cir
duge CoOng ty in, déng dau treo va giri cho cac C6 ddng cung Thong bdo moi hop PHPCD. Mbi C6
déng dugc cip mot Phiéu biéu quyét va mot Phiéu bau cur.

For Shareholders who do not attend the GMS in person: Shareholders vote by sending Voting Paper,
Election Card and the original Invitation Letter to the GMS, in which the Voting Paper and Election
Card are printed, stamped and sent to Shareholders together with the Invitation Letter of GMS. Each
Shareholder is granted one Voting Paper and one Election Card.

Phwong thirc biéu quyét/ Voting methods
Biéu quyét truc tiép tai Pai hdi /Voting directly at the GMS

Theo sy diéu khién ctiia Chu toa, cdc Cb ddng biéu quyét tryc tiép tai Pai hoi bang cach gio Thé biéu
quyét hozc thong qua Phiéu biéu quyét ddi voi cac ndi dung can biéu quyét theo Chuong trinh hop.

Following the direction of the Chairperson, Shareholders vote directly at the Meeting by raising their
Voting Cards or using the Voting Papers with regard to the contents required to be voted in the Meeting
Agenda.

Céch thire biéu quyét bang Thé biéu quyét /The method of voting by the Voting Card

Cb dong biéu quyét (tan thanh, khong tan thanh, khong c6 ¥ kién) d6i vi mot vin dé bang cach gio Thé
biéu quyét tai Dai hoi.

The Shareholders vote (agree, disagree, abstain) for each content by raising their Voting Cards at the
Meeting.

Khi tién hanh biéu quyét tai Dai hoi, cac Co dong biéu quyét tan thanh s& gio Thé biéu quyét. Thanh
vién Ban kiém phiéu s& ghi nhan Ma sb Co6 dong va sb Thé biéu quyét tuong tmg ciia ting c6 dong tan
thanh. Twong tu, theo su diéu hanh ctia Chu toa, cac ¢d dong khong tan thanh hoic khong cé y kién
s& 1an luot gio Thé biéu quyét va dugc Ban kiém phiéu thong ké lai.

When voting at the Meeting, the Shareholders agree by raising their Voting Cards. The members of the
Voting Committee will record the Shareholder code and the number of Voting Card corresponding with

1 M4 sb C6 dong do Pinetree cap cho timg C6 dong theo danh sach chét tai ngay 10/4/2023 /Shareholder code is issued by
Pinetree to each Shareholder according to the closing list on April 10, 2023.
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2.2.

each agreeing Shareholder. Similarly, under the management of Chairperson, other Shareholders will
give their negative opinion (disagree) or abstention (no opinion), in turn, by raising their Voting Cards
and their information and opinion will be recorded by the Voting Committee.

Céch thire biéu quyét biang Phiéu biéu quyét /The method of voting by the Voting Paper

Cb dong biéu quyét bang cach tich (X) hoic (V) vao mét trong cac 6 Tan thanh/Khong tan thanh/Khong
6 y kién dbi voi van dé can 1dy biéu quyét duoc ghi trong Phiéu biéu quyét, dong thoi, ky va ghi 1 ho
tén vao Phiéu biéu quyét.

A Shareholder votes by puting a cross (X) or a tick (\) on one of the Agree/Disagree/Abstain box
coresponding to each voting item specified in the Voting Paper, and his/her signature and full name in
the Voting Paper.

Sau khi hoan thanh, C6 dong bo phiéu vao hom phiéu.
After completing, the Shareholder puts his/her Voting Paper into the voting box.
Céch thire biéu quyét biang Phiéu bau cir /The method of voting by the Election Card

Néu c6 noi dung vé bau cir thanh vién Hoi dong quan tri (HPQT) va/hoic Ban Kiém soat (BKS) trong
DHDCD, C6 dong sé& biéu quyét bang Phiéu bau cir. Thong tin tng vién dwoc dé cu/ty ang ctr (sau day
duoc goi chung 12 “Ung vién”) thanh vién HDQT/BKS dugc néu trong Phiéu bau ct, tai liéu Dai hoi
hodc dugc cap nhat trén trang thong tin dién tu caa Cong ty.

If there is content on election of members of the Board of Directors (BOD) and/or Board of Supervisors
(BOS) in the GMS, a Shareholder will vote by his/her Election Card. Information on the
nominees/candidates (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Candidate”) for members of the
BOD/BOS are included in the Election Card, the GMS documents or updated on the website of the
Company.

Cb d6ng dién sb phiéu bau tuong tng cho mdi Ung vién theo nguyén tic bau cir néu tai Quy ché To
chure ndy, ddng thai, ky va ghi rd ho tén vao Phiéu bau cir.

Shareholders fill in the number of their votes for each Candidate according to the election principles
stated in this Regulation, sign and add their full names in their Election Cards.

Sau khi hoan thanh, C6 dong bé Phiéu bau ctr vao hom phiéu.
After completing, Shareholders put their Election Cards into the voting box.

Biéu quyét bing cach giri Phiéu biéu quyét va Phiéu bau cir vé Cong ty/Voting by sending the
Voting Paper and Election Card to the Company

Cb dong khong tham du truc tiép Dai hoi s& biéu quyét bang cach gui vé Cong ty Phiéu biéu quyét
va/hoic Phiéu bau cir kém Thang bao moi hop ma Ban té chirc d giri cho C6 dong. CH dong tich (X)
hozc (V) vao ngi dung minh chon, ky va ghi rd ho tén vao Phiéu biéu quyét; dién sé phiéu bau tuong
rng cho mdi Ung vién theo nguyén tic bau cir néu tai Quy ché Td chic nay, ky va ghi rd ho tén vao
Phiéu bau cir.

Shareholders who do not directly attend the Meeting will vote by sending to the Company their Voting
Papers and/or Election Cards together with the Invitation Letters sent by the Organizing Committee to
the Shareholders. Shareholders put a cross (X) or a tick () to their selected contents, sign and write
their full names into their Voting Papers; fill in the number of votes for each Candidate according to the
election principles stated in this Regulation, sign and write their full names into their Election Cards.

Cb d6ng gui tai liéu néu trén vé Cong ty theo hinh thire guri thu, fax, thu dién tir hodc hinh thic khac
quy dinh tai Didu 1& Cong ty. Thai gian nhan trwéc 17"30 ngay 04/05/2023 tai dia chi:
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Shareholders send the above documents to the Company by courier, fax, email or other methods
provided in the Company Charter. The time of the Company’s receipt is before 17h30, May 04, 2023 at
the following address:

Ban t6 chirc Dai hoi dong ¢ dong thuong nién nam 2023 - Cong ty Co6 phan Chang khoén Pinetree —
Tang 20, toa nha TNR, 54A Nguyén Chi Thanh, phuong Lang Thuong, quan Déng Pa, Ha Noi.
Organizing Committee of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholder - Pinetree Securities

Corporation - 20th Floor, TNR Building, 54A Nguyen Chi Thanh, Lang Thuong Ward, Dong Da
District, Hanoi.

bién thoai/Tel: +84 24 6276 1818 (May I&/Ext: 699) Fax: +84 24 6275 0077
Email: thuyptp@pinetree.vn
Thé 18 biéu quyét va bau cir/ Voting and electing rules

S6 lwong phiéu biéu quyét caa mot C6 déng duoc tinh theo nguyén tic 01 (mot) co phan phd théng
tuong wng véi 01 (mat) phiéu biéu quyét.

The number of votes of a Shareholder is determined on the principle of 01 (one) common share
corresponding to 01 (one) vote.

Tai ngay chét danh séch c6 déng (ngay 10/04/2023), tong s6 c¢b phan c6 quyén biéu quyét cia Cong ty la
97.000.000 (Chin muoi bay triéu) c6 phan, twong dwong 97.000.000 (Chin muoi bay triéu) phiéu biéu
quyét.

At the closing date of the list of shareholders (10/4/2023), the total voting shares of the Company is
97,000,000 (Ninety seven million) shares, equivalent to 97,000,000 (Ninety seven million) votes.

Viéc bau thanh vién HDQT/BKS duoc thyc hién theo phuong phap bau don phiéu. Mdi C6 dong co tong
s6 phiéu biéu quyét twong tng véi tong s6 cb phan s¢ hitu nhan véi sé thanh vién dwoc bau cua
HPQT/BKS. C6 dong co quyén don hét hoic mot phan téng s6 phiéu bau caa minh cho mot hoac mot sé
g vién. Ngudi tring cir thanh vién HDQT/BKS duogc xac dinh theo sb phiéu bau tinh tir cao xudng
thap, bat dau tir tng vién c6 sé phiéu bau cao nhat cho dén khi du sé thanh vién duoc bau trong Pai hoi.

The election of members of the BOD/BOS is implemented by the method of cumulative voting. Each
Shareholder has the total number of votes corresponding to the total number of shares owned multiplied
by the number of elected members of the BOD/BOS. Shareholders have the right to accumulate all or
part of their total votes for one or several candidates. The elected member of the BOD/BOS is
determined by the number of votes from high to low, starting from the candidate with the highest number
of votes until a sufficient number of members are elected in the GMS.

THAO LUAN TAI PAI HOI /DISSCUSION AT THE MEETING

Viéc thao luan tai Pai hoi chi dugc thyc hién trong thoi gian quy dinh theo Chuong trinh va diéu khién
cua Chu toa Pai hoi;

Discussion at the GMS will be conducted within the prescribed time in the agenda and managed by the
Chairperson of the GMS.

Cb d6ng co y kién can dang ky vao Phiéu dit cau hoi va chuyén cho Thu ky Dai hoi;

Any Shareholder raising his/her opinion has to register by Question form and sends it to the Secretary
of the Meeting;

Thu ky Dai hoi s& sap xép cac Phiéu dit cau hoi cua cd dong theo thir tw dang ky va chuyén 1én cho Cha
toa Dai hoi.
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VI.

The Secretary of GMS will arrange the Question forms of Shareholders according to the order of
registration and submit them to the Chairperson of the Meeting.

Chu toa hozc thanh vién do Chi toa chi dinh s& giai dap cac y kién thic méic cua ¢ dong.

The Chairperson or another member appointed by the Chairperson will answer the questions of
shareholders.

PE CU, UNG CU THANH VIEN HPQT/BKS /NOMINATIONS CANDIDATES OF BOD/BOS

Ung vién cho vj tri thanh vién HDQT/BKS phai dap tng céc diéu kién duoc quy dinh tai Diéu 18
va/hoic van ban phap luat lién quan.

Candidates for members of the BOD/BOS must meet the conditions prescribed in the Charter and/or
related legal documents.

Céc CH dong nam gitr c6 phan c6 quyén biéu quyét trong thoi han lién tuc it nhit sau (06) thang tinh dén
thoi diém chot danh séch co dong dy hop ¢6 quyén cling nhau Iap nhém dé cir.

Shareholders holding voting shares for at least six (06) consecutive months up to the time of closing the
list of attending shareholders have the right to form a group to nominate.

Viéc dé cu, ung cir phai duoc thyc hién bang van ban. Noi dung dé cir phai ghi rd tén Co dong, s luong
cb phan caa Co déng, tén ngudi dugce dé ct, chit ky cua ¢b dong dé cir va ngudi duoc dé cir.

Nomination or application must be made in writing. The nominated content must specify the name of the
shareholder, the number of owner’s shares, the name of the nominated person, the signature of the
shareholder and the nominated person.

Ho so tham gia dé cur, wng cir thanh vién HDQT/BKS:
Dossiers for nominating and applying for members of the BOD/BOS:
Pon d¢é ctr, tng cir hoac bién ban dé cir nhém (néu nhém cb dong dé cir) theo mau cua Cong ty;

Nomination sheet, application or group nomination sheet (if garthering to nominate by a group of
shareholders) according to the Company ’s specified forms;

Ban cung cap théng tin do Ung vién tu khai theo mau cua Cong ty;

Personal curriculum vitae provided by the Candidate according to the Company s specified form;
Ban sao CMND/CCCD/Hb chiéu va céc bang céap, ching chi lién quan cua wng vién.

Copy of ID/Passport and related qualifications and licenses of the Candidates.

Dua trén ho so nhan duoc, Ban t6 chic sé lap danh sach cac Ung vién dap tmg da diéu kién theo quy
dinh va cap nhat danh sach nay trong tai liéu bai hoi.

Based on the received documents, the Organizing Committee will make a list of Candidates who meet
the prescribed conditions and update this list in the Meeting documents.

Céc van dé khac lién quan dén viéc ung ctr, dé cir thanh vién HDQT/BKS dugc thuc hién theo quy dinh
tai Diéu 18 va quy dinh phap luat lién quan.

Other issues related to the application and nomination of members of the BOD/BOS shall comply with
the provisions of the Charter and relevant law provisions.

TRACH NHIEM CUA CHU TQA /RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CHAIRPERSON
Diéu khién Dai hoi theo dung ndi dung Chuong trinh hop, Quy ché T4 chirc duge Dai hoi théng qua.

To control the Meeting in accordance with the Agenda and the Organization Regulations approved by
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VILI.

VIII.

the Meeting.

Hudng dan Pai hoi thao luan, 13y y kién biéu quyét cac van dé trong noi dung Chuong trinh hop cua Pai
hoi va céc van dé ¢ lién quan trong suét qua trinh hop DPHDCD.

To instruct the Meeting to discuss, vote on the contents in GMS Agenda and related issues during the
GMS.

Quyét dinh va t6 chiic giai quyét cac van dé phat sinh trong suét qua trinh hop DPHDCD.
To make decision and to organize the settlement of problem arising during the GMS.
TRACH NHIEM CUA THU KY PAI HQI /RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SECRETARY

Ghi chép day du, trung thuc toan bo noi dung didn bién Dai hoi va nhitng van dé da duoc cac Co dong
thong qua hoic trao doi tai PHPCPD vao Bién ban hop DPHPCD;

To fully and truthfully record the entire contents of the Meeting and the issues agreed or discussed by
Shareholders in the minutes of the GMS;

Soan thao Nghi quyét vé cac van dé da dugc thdng qua tai PHDCD.
To draft the Resolutions on issues approved at the GMS.
TRACH NHIEM CUA BAN KIEM PHIEU /RESPONSIBILITIES OF VOTING COMMITTEE

Théng ké va xac dinh chinh xac két qua biéu quyét ciia C6 dong vé cac van dé thdng qua, biéu quyét tai
PHDCD;

To collect and determine exactly the voting results on issues approved or voted of Shareholders at the
GMS;

Béo céo cho Dai hoi vé két qua biéu quyét;
To inform the Meeting about the voting results;

Bé4o cao PHDCD nhiing truong hop vi pham thé 1& biéu quyét hoic don thu khiéu nai vé két qua biéu
quyét (néu c9).

To report to the GMS on any violation of the voting rules or complaints about voting results (if any).

BIEN BAN VA NGHI QUYET HOQP DPAI HQI PONG CO PONG/ MINUTES AND
RESOLUTION OF GMS

Bién ban hop DPHPCD va Nghi quyét PHPCD phai duoc doc va thdng qua truc tiép tai cudc hop trudc
khi bé mac Dai hoi.

The GMS Minutes and Resolution must be read and approved directly at the GMS before the closing of
the Meeting.

TM. HQI PONG QUAN TRI
FOR AND BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Lee Jun Hyuck
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CONG TY CP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION Poc lap - Tu do - Hanh phuc
----------------- SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
S6/No:  /2023/BC-HPQT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
HaNoi, / /2023 /Hanoi, , 2023

BAO CAO CUA HOI PONG QUAN TRI /REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TAI PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023
AT THE 2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Kinh thua Dai hdi,
To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

Hoi dong Quan tri (“HPQT”) Cong ty c6 phan Chimg khoan Pinetree (“Pinetree”/“Cong ty”) bao
céo Pai hoi ddng C6 ddng Thuong nién nim 2023 (“GMS”) vé hoat dong ndm 2022 va ké hoach
nam 2023 cia HDQT nhu sau:

The Board of Directors (“BOD”) of Pinetree Securities Corporation (“Pinetree”/“Company”)
would like to report to the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“GMS ) about activities
in 2022 and plan for the year 2023 of BOD, as follows:

1. Tinh hinh hoat dgng cia Cong ty nam 2022 /Operation situation of the Company in 2022:

Vi muc tiéu ngay cang hoan thién trai nghiém ctua Khich hang trén méi truong sd, nim 2022
Pinetree tiép tuc ddy manh nhiéu hoat dong nang cip hé sinh thai tmg dung dau tu chimg khoan. C6
thé ké dén nhu ra mét giao di¢n WebTrading méi hién dai, than thién, sO hoa; nang cép ung
dung AlphaTrading v&i nhidu giao dién va tinh ning méi, téi uu trai nghiém nguoi ding. Ngoai ra
thong qua hoat dong hop tac voi Lotte Finance va Grab, ndm qua Pinetree con dem tdi cac goi san
pham ciing nhur giai phap tai chinh tu viét va cac chuong trinh khuyén mai khiing cho khach hang.
With the goal of increasingly perfecting customer's experience in the digital environment, in 2022
Pinetree continued to promote many activities to upgrade the securities investment application
ecosystem. These include the launch of a new, modern, user-friendly, digitized WebTrading interface;
upgrade AlphaTrading application with many new interfaces and features, optimizing user
experience. In addition, through cooperation with Lotte Finance and Grab, last year Pinetree also
brought superior product packages as well as financial solutions and great promotions to customers.

Trong diéu kién bién dong ctia nén kinh té dién ra trong nam 2022, stic ép ty gia két hop cing nhiéu
lan diéu chinh nang lai suat diéu hanh cta Ngan hang Nha nuée khién céc cong ty chimg khoan dong
loat nang 13i suat margin. Tuy nhién, v&i phuong cham s6 hoa toan dién, t6i uu chi phi nho' m6 hinh
khong chi nhanh, khong méi gidi, Pinetree van tiép tuc duy tri chinh sach 1ai suét cho vay giao dich
ky quy va tng trude tién ban 9%/nam dén hét ngay 31/12/2022, qua d6 giam ap luc cho nha dau tu
gitra bdi canh bat on kinh té toan cau gia ting.

In the context of economic fluctuations in 2022, the exchange rate pressure combined with
adjustments to raise the operating interest rate of the State Bank caused a series of securities
companies to increase margin interest rates. However, with the motto of comprehensive digitization,
optimizing costs with the model of no branch, no brokerage, Pinetree continued to maintain the policy
of interest rate for margin lending and advance payment of 9%/ year to December 31, 2022, thereby
reducing pressure on investors amid a rising in global economic uncertainty.



Théang 12/2022, Pinetree cho ra mit san phdm trai phiéu PineB nham chia sé¢ co hoi dau tu véi khach
hang, gilip khéch hang da dang hoa danh muc dau tu. Trai phiéu ma Pinetree lya chon m& ban déu
duoc phat hanh boi cac doanh nghiép uy tin, mire d6 rui ro duoc kiém soét voi muce 13i suat hip dan.
In December 2022, Pinetree launched PineB bond product to share investment opportunities with
customers, helping customers diversify their investment portfolios. The bonds that Pinetree choose to
open for sale are all issued by reputable businesses, the level of risk is controlled with attractive
interest rates.

Ciing trong thang cudi ndm 2022, nhan dip ky niém 30 nam thiét lap quan hé ngoai giao Viét Nam —
Han Quéc, Hiép hoi nguoi Han tai Ha Noi, Viét Nam da t6 chirc 18 hoi mang tén “Con dudng hitu
nghi Viét — Han 2022”. La cong ty chimg khoan s6 Han Qudc tién phong cac giai phap san pham
dich vu sb hoa khac biét, tai gian hang tnen 1am, Pinetree d gidi thiéu hé sinh thai Gmg dung dau tu
chimg khoan va céc dich vu dang cung cap t6i khach hang trong va ngoai nudc.

Also in the last month of 2022, on the occasion of the 30th anniversary of the establishment of
diplomatic relations between Vietnam and Korea, the Association of Koreans in Hanoi, Vietham held
a festival called “Vietnam - Korea Friendship Road 2022”. As a Korean digital securities company
pioneering different digital product and service solutions, at the exhibition booth, Pinetree introduced
several securities investment application ecosystem and services to domestic and foreign customers.

Chi sau mot nam chinh thirc ra mét, véi cac tinh ning hip dan, PineX da thu hut hon 200.000 ngudi
ding— tré thanh tmg dung dau tu chig khoan théng minh thé hé méi gitp nha dau tu giao dich dé
dang trén nén tang mot mang xa hoi dau tu doc dao — hién dai — dan dau xu thé. Nam trong chién
luoc s ciia Pinetree, PineX dugc ra mat nham hoan thién hé sinh thai tmg dung sé phuc vu nha dau
tu tr budc dau lam quen thi trudng cho dén khi tré thanh nhing nha du tu kinh nghiém. PineX
khong chi két ndi nha dau tu méi véi cong déng nha dau tu kinh nghiém, cho phép chia sé, thdo luén
khong gioi han, ma con tich hop nhiéu tinh ning thong minh voi do bao mat cao cung trai nghiém
dau tu hoan toan khéc biét. Trong ndm 2022, ngoai chinh sach giao dich 0 phi tron doi gin lién véi
thuong hiéu Pinetree, PineX con tung nhiéu chuong trinh hip dan chwa timg co, ciing nhiéu hoat
dong tha vi véi phan thuong 16n va doc dao dén dong dao nguoi dung.

After only one year of official launching, with attractive features, PineX has attracted more than
200,000 users — becoming a new generation smart investment application that helps investors to
trade easily on the platform of a unique - modern - trend-leading investment social network. As part
of Pinetree's digital strategy, PineX was launched to perfect the digital application ecosystem to serve
investors from the initial getting acquainted with the market to becoming experienced investors..
PineX not only connects new investors with a community of experienced investors, allowing unlimited
sharing and discussion, but also integrates many smart features with high security and a completely
different investment experience. In 2022, in addition to the lifetime zero-fee transaction policy
associated with the Pinetree brand, PineX also launched many unprecedented attractive programs,
along with many interesting activities with great and unique rewards to users.

Trong nam 2022, s6 lugng tai khoan md méi ciia khach hang da tang 417%, tai san ctia khach hang
tai Pinetree ting 16%, tong gia trj giao dich cua khach hang ciing ting 7.5% so voi nam 2021. Theo
@6, thi phan gia tri giao dich cta Pinetree trén thi trudng da ting 41% tir 0.79% nam 2021 1én 1.12%
vao nam 2022.

In 2022, the number of new accounts opened by customers increased by 417%, customer assets at
Pinetree increased by 16% and the total trading value of customers also increased by 7.5%
compared to 2021. Accordingly, Pinetree's market share regarding to trading value in the market
increased by 41% from 0.79% in 2021 to 1.12% in 2022.

2. Hoat dong cia HPQT /Activities of the BOD:

Danh s4ch cac thanh vién HPQT trong ndm 2022 cho dén Pai hoi cua Cong ty:
The list of members of BOD in 2022 up to the GMS of Company:



STT Thanh vien HDQT Chire vu
No Members of BOD Position
1 Ong Noh Eun Woo Chu tich HDQT
Mr. Noh Eun Woo Chairman
) Ong Lee Jun Hyuck Thanh vién HDQT
Mr. Lee Jun Hyuck Member
3 Ong Nguyén Huy Duong Thanh vién HDQT
Mr. Nguyen Huy Duong Member

Trong thoi gian trén, HDQT d ban hanh cac Nghi quyét va Quyét dinh tap trung vao giai quyét chi
dao cac ndi dung quan trong lién quan t4i xay dung chién luge hoat dong cta Cong ty, trién khai ké
hoach kinh doanh, hoan thién cac quy ché hoat dong dé ciing c¢b hé théng quan tri ciia Cong ty.

On above period, the BOD has issued Resolutions and Decisions focusing on directing important
issues related to the development of the Company's operational strategy, implementing business
plans, finalizing regulations activities to strengthen the corporate governance system.

Trong ndm 2022, cac phién hop cia HDQT bao gom:
In 2022, the BOD meetings include:

TT
No

Ngay
Date

S6 thanh
vién tham du
Attendee

No6i dung
Content

11/03/2022

3/3

Triéu tap dai hoi dong c6 dong thudng nién 2022
Convening of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in
2022

23/05/2022

313

Thong qua viéc Ky cac Phu luc, quyét dinh va/hoac thoa thuan
stra d6i, bod sung Hop dong lao dong cuia Tong Giam déc.
Approval on the signing of the Annexes, decisions and/or
agreements to amend and supplement the Labor Contract of
the General Director.

11/08/2022

313

Thong qua viéc bd nhiém ba Nguyén Thi Tuyét giit chirc
danh Trudng bo phan Kiém toan ndi bd Pinetree ké tir ngay
11/8/2022.

Approval on the appointment of Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuyet to hold
the position of Head of Internal Audit Department of Pinetree
Securities Corporation from August 11, 2022.

03/10/2022

3/3

Thong qua viéc tai bo nhiém ba Dinh Thi Lan Phuong tiép tuc
gitr chirc vu K¢€ toan truong cia Cong ty voi thot han tai bo
nhiém 03 nam ké tir ngay 03/10/2022.

Approval on the re-appointment of Ms. Dinh Thi Lan Phuong
to continue to hold the position of Chief Accountant of the
Company with re-appointment term of 3 years from October
3, 2022.




3. Két qua giam sat caa HPQT déi véi Tong Giam doc /BOD’s Supervision to the General

Director:

Trong nam 2022, HDQT di chi dao va gidm sat hoat dong ciia Téng Giam ddc theo cac phuong thirc
vanoi dung sau:

In 2022, the BOD directed and supervise over the operations of the General Director based on
following factors:

Théng qua co ché bao co dinh ky: Trong qua trinh hoat dong, Téng Giam ddc da tudn thu ché
d6 bao c4o dinh ky hang thang, quy, ban nién va thudng nién vé tinh hinh hoat dong kinh doanh,
tinh hinh tai chinh ciia Cong ty. Ngoai ra, cong tic giam sat con duoc trién khai théng qua cac
chi dao vé ra soat lai cac quy ché, quy trinh nhim cung ¢ t6 chirc hoat dong dam bao tuan tha
quy dinh phap luat va hoat dong minh bach.

Approved the periodical reporting mechanism: During the operation process, the General
Director has complied with the regime of monthly, quarterly and semi-annual and annual
reports on business performance and financial situation of the Company. In addition, the
supervision is also carried out through the instructions to review the regulations and processes
to strengthen the organization and activities of the Company and ensure compliance with legal
regulations and transparent activities.

Thong qua cac chi dao, nghi quyét cua HPQT tai cac cudc hop cia HDQT nam 2022.
Approved the instructions and resolutions of the BOD at the meetings of the BOD in 2022.

Théng qua cong tac kiém tra, gidm sat ctia Ban Kiém soat: HDQT da phdi hop tich cuc véi Ban
Kiém soét, dudi su gidm sat hoat dong ciia Ban Kiém soat dé duy tri su an toan va hoan thién co
ché hoat dong ctia Pinetree.

Approved the inspection and supervision of the Board of Supervisors: The BOD has actively
cooperated with the Board of Supervisors, under the supervision of the BOS to maintain the
safety of and to improve the operational mechanism of the Company.

Ngoai ra, HDQT con chi trong cong tac quan tri ri o, trién khai dong thoi viée chuan hoa cac
quy trinh, quy ché quén tri; ting cudng kiém tra, giam sét viéc thuc thi cac quy trinh, quy ché
trong moi hoat dong ctia Cong ty. Hoat dong ctia HPQT ciing dugc ting cudng nham phét huy
vai trd quan trong trong viéc giam sat hoat dong ctia Cong ty, kip thoi phat hién va khic phuc
cac diém yéu, tao da cho su phat trién bén vimg, dam bao can di hai hoa loi ich ctia Cong ty,
cta ¢ dong va ddi tac ciing nhu quyén loi ctia nguoi lao dong.

In addition, the BOD also focused on risk management, simultaneously implementing the
standardization of management processes and regulations; enhance inspection and supervision
of the implementation of procedures and regulations in all activities of the Company. Activities
of the BOD were also strengthened to promote the important role in monitoring the Company's
activities, timely detecting and overcoming weaknesses, creating momentum for sustainable
development, ensuring a harmonious balance. harmonize the interests of the Company,
shareholders and partners as well as the rights of employees.

Tai cac phién hop dinh ky, HDQT Coéng ty déu tién hanh théng qua bao cao két qua hoat dong
kinh doanh hang quy va ban ké hoach giai doan sau do Téng giam déc trinh bay. Cac cudc hop
déu duoc thao luan dan chi, cong khai va co trach nhiém cao.

At regular meetings, the BOD of the Company approved the quarterly income statement and
discussed the next stage plan presented by the General Director. Meetings are discussed
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democratically, publicly and responsibly.

HDQT danh gia hoat dong cuia Cong ty da dugc ddm bao an toan, tuan thi theo ding quy dinh cta
phap luat, trién khai thyc hién theo ding cac Nghi quyét ciia Dai hoi c¢6 dong va HPQT; Tong Giam
déc va can bo cha chdt da thyuc hién dang va dy du cong viée, trach nhiém trong pham vi quyén han
cua minh.

The BOD assessed that the Company's activities were ensured safely, complied with the provisions of
law, implemented in accordance with the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the
BOD; The General Director and key staff have correctly and fully performed the tasks and
responsibilities within their powers.

4. Kéhoach hoat ddng cia HDQT nam 2023 /Operation plan of the BOD in 2023:

Trén co s& du bao diéu kién kinh té va tai chinh ndm 2023, HDQT d4 thdng nhit vé dinh hudng hoat
dong ctia Cong ty nhu sau:

Based on the forecast of economic and financial conditions in 2023, the BOD agreed on the
orientation of the Company's activities as follows:

- Véi nhitng danh gia vé thi truong trong nam 2023, HDQT sé tép trung vao cic cong viée: (1)

Xay dung ké hoach phat trién kinh doanh phil hop véi tinh hinh thi trudng; (2) Tap trung hoan
thién hé sinh thai nén tang s6 nham dem dén trai nghiém dau tu d@ dang, thuan tién, on dinh va
nhanh chéng cho Khach hang; (3) Tap trung nang cao nang lyc canh tranh ctia Cong ty thong
qua phat trién ngudn nhan lyc, ndng cao chit lugng ciia hé théng quan tri, quan tri i ro dé dua
cac san pham, dich vu ¢ ham luong chat xam cao vi muc tiéu xay dung cudc song thinh vugng
bén ving bang cac giai phap tai chinh s6 dén Khach hang; (4) Nang cao ning luc quan tri cong
ty, tudn thu, kiém soat ndi bo va kiém toan ndi bo va tang tinh minh bach trong hoat dong cta
doanh nghiép nham dam bao Cong ty hoat dong hidu qua, an toan va bén viing.
With market assessments in 2023, the BOD will focus on: (1) Building business development
plans in suiable with the market situation; (2) Focus on perfecting the digital platform ecosystem
to bring an easy, convenient, stable and fast investment experience to customers; (3) Focus on
improving the competitiveness of the Company through human resource development, improving
the quality of the management system, risk management to bring high qualified products and
services for the purpose of building a sustainable prosperous life with digital financial solutions
to customers; (4) Improve corporate governance, compliance, internal control and internal audit
capabilities and increase transparency in corporate operations to ensure the Company operates
efficiently, safely and sustainably.

- Tiép tuc phdi hop, hd trg Téong Giam dbc va ban lanh dao phin ddu dat mirc do ting trudong vé
doanh thu va lgi nhuan nhu ké hoach 2023 dé ra.
Continue to coordinate and support the General Director and management board in striving to
achieve the growth of revenue and profit as planned in 2023.

Kinh trinh Pai hoi xem xét va thong qua.
For the General Meeting of Shareholders consideration and approval.

TM. HQI PONG QUAN TRI
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS



Lee Jun Hyuck



CONG TY CP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION Poc 1ap - Tu do - Hanh phic
————————————————— SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
S6/No:  /2023/BC-TGD Independence — Freedom — Happiness
HaNoi, / /2023 /Hanoi, , 2023

BAO CAO CUA TONG GIAM POC /REPORT OF GENERAL DIRECTOR

TAI DAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023
AT THE 2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Kinh thua Dai hdi,
To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

Thay mit ban linh dao Céng ty, Tong Giam déc Cong ty CO phan Ching khoan Pinetree
(“Pinetree”/“CoOng ty”) bao cao Pai hoi dong Co6 dong Thuong nién nam 2023 vé hoat dong kinh
doanh nam 2022 va ké hoach nim 2023 nhu sau:

On be half of the management board of the Company, the General Director of Pinetree Securities
Corporation (“Pinetree "’/ “Company ") reports to the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
about Company'’s business results for the year 2022 and business plan for the year 2023, as follows:

1. Hoat dong kinh doanh ciia Cong ty nam 2022 /Business activities of the Company in 2022:

Nam 2022, Pinetree tap trung xay dung, phat trién ngudn nhan Iyc chat lugng cao cho hoat dong kinh
doanh ctia cong ty, cling nhu phét trién cac nén tang, tng dung va san pham chét luong nham chia sé
cac co hoi dau tu gia trj dén khach hang. Ngoai hoat dong méi gidi va cho vay, Cong ty ciing thic
day su phat trién ctia cac hoat dong Ngan hang dau tu, Tu doanh nham dap tng t6i da nhu cau cia
Khach hang.

In 2022, Pinetree focuses on building and developing high-quality human resources for the
company's business activities, as well as develop quality platforms, applications and products to
share valuable investment opportunities with customers. In addition to brokerage and lending
activities, the Company also promotes development of Investment Banking and Proprietary Trading
activities to meet the needs of customers to the fullest extent.

Trong béi canh bién dong cua thi trudng ndm 2022, dé phu hop véi mirc 14i sut diéu hanh méi sau
hai lan diéu chinh tir Ngan hang Nha nudc, nhiéu cong ty ching khoan da tién hanh ting 13i suat cho
vay margin tir giita cudi ndm 2022 va nhiéu kha ning s& tiép tuc ting t6i nim sau, riéng Pinetree van
gitr 6n dinh chinh sach 13i vay margin 9%/nam va 0 phi giao dich trong sudt 3 nim va kéo dai hét
2022. So voi 1i suit cho vay margin trung binh & cc cong ty chimg khoan khac trong khoang 12-
14%/ nam, chinh sach phi va 14i suat 6n dinh hap dan cta Pinetree di tao ra hiéu tmg tich cuc. Trong
nam 2022, cong ty ghi nhan luong tai khoan md méi ting gip hon 5 1an so voi nam 2021, chiém
3.0% thi phan.

In the context of market volatility in 2022, in order to match the new operating interest rate after two
adjustments from the State Bank, many securities companies have increased margin lending rates

since the middle of the year 2022 and is likely to continue to increase until next year, but Pinetree still
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maintains the policy of margin lending interest at 9%/year and O transaction fees for 3 years and
lasts until the end of 2022. Compared to average margin lending rates in other securities companies
in the range of 12-14%/year, Pinetree's attractive stable interest rate and fee policy has created a
positive effect. In 2022, the Company recorded a 5 times increase in the number of new accounts
opened compared to 2021, accounting for 3.0% of the market share.

Ngoai ra, bang viéc Kién dinh véi chinh sach mién phi giao dich tron doi, cing két ndi nhanh, 6n dinh
va dé sir dung, Cong ty da dat dugc nhitng két qua tich cuc trong nam 2022 khi tong gia tri giao dich
cta nha dau tu dat 112,705 ty dong ting gin 15%, tai san clia khach hang tai Pinetree dat 4,070 ty
dong tang 16% so v6i nam 2021. Két thiic ndm 2022, Cong ty dat gan 218 ty dong doanh thu hoat
dong, tang 51% so voi nam 2021.

In addition, by being consistent with the policy of free trading for life, with fast, stable and easy-to-use
connection, Pinetree did achieved encouraging results in 2022 as the total transaction value of
investors reached VND 112,705 billion, increased nearly 15%, customer assets at Pinetree reached
VND 4,070 billion, increased 16% compared to 2021. By the end of 2022, Pinetree achieved nearly
VND 218 billion in operating revenue, increased 51% compared to 2021.

Tuy nhién, Pinetree va hau hét cic cong ty chimg khoan trén thi truong ciing da trai qua mot ndm
2022 véi nhiéu gam tram do thi truong cd phiéu suy giam, thi trudng trai phiéu doanh nghiép bi siét
chit, cac didu kién tai chinh that chit hon, di kém tam 1y than trong ctia nha dau tu c4 nhan. Chi phi
vay tang manh dan téi loi nhuan sut gidm. Song, vdi cac yéu td tich cuc cho trién vong thi truong
nam 2023, bao gdm du doan 4p luc ti gia giam va ra mat nén tang giao dich KRX, thj truong ching
khoan Viét Nam dugc ky vong s& co nhitng khéi sic trong nam toi.

However, Pinetree and most securities companies in the market have also experienced a negative year
2022 due to the decline of the stock market, the tightening of the corporate bond market, tighter financial conditions,
and the cautious sentiment of personal investors. The sharp increase in borrowing costs leads to a decrease
in profit. Yet, with the positive factors for the market outlook in 2023, including the prediction of downward exchange
rate pressure and the launch of the KRX trading platform, Vietnamese stock market is expected to prosper in the next

year.

Két qua kinh doanh niim 2022 /The business results in 2022

Chi tiéu K¢ hoach 2022 % ké hoach
Indicators 2022’s Plan % Plan
Doanh thu hoat dong Péng  217,992,053,355  291,000,000,000 75%
Operating Revenue

Loi nhugn sau thue Pong 13048435081  30,700,000,000 43%

Profit after tax

Hoat dgng Moi giéi chirng khoan /Securities Brokerage Activities

2022 1a nam day bién dong cua thi truong chimg khoan Viét Nam, ndm phuyc hoi kinh té sau dai dich
COVID-19, song lai bi p luc boi véi nhidu thong tin ndi com trong va ngoai nude. Chi s VN-Index
timg c6 thoi diém 1an dau tién trong lich str vuot ngudng 1.500 diém. Song, ciing ¢6 thoi diém chim
sau xubng dudi 900 diém - mirc thip nhat trong vong 2 ndm. Tinh trung binh, thanh khoan mdi phién
trong ndm 2022 dat 15.728 ty dong, giam manh gan 22% so voi ndm 2021.

2022 is a volatile year for Vietnam stock market, the year of economic recovery after the COVID-19
pandemic, but pressured by many noticeable domestic and foreign information. VN-Index once had
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the first time in history surpassing the threshold of 1,500 points. However, there was also a time when
it sank below 900 points - the lowest level in 2 years. On average, the trading value per trading
session in 2022 reached VND 15,728 billion, a sharp decrease of nearly 22% compared to 2021.

L& mot nam kho khin nhung sd luong tai khoan mé méi ndm 2022 van 1ap ky luc. Lity ké ca nim
2022, nha dau tu ca nhan trong nudc di mé méi gan 2,6 tridu tai khoan ching khoan. Pay 1a con sd
cao nhét trong 22 nam hoat dong. Con sb nay tham chi con vuot qua tong sd luong tai khoan mé méi
clia 6 nam tir 2016 dén 2021 cong lai.

It has been a difficult year, but number of 2022 new openning accounts still set a record. In the whole
year of 2022, domestic individual investors have opened nearly 2.6 million accounts. This is the
highest number in 22 years. This number even exceeds the total number of new accounts opened for
the 6 years from 2016 to 2021 combined.

Dic biét, tai Pinetree, nha dau tu co thé dé dang m¢ tai khoan giao dich chung khoén véi tién ich mé
tai khoan eKYC trén app hodc website chi trong 2 phut, déng thoi ¢6 thé su dung dich vu hoan thi¢n
h6 so E-contract hodc nhan ban cimg tai nha mién phi do Viettel post cung cdp. Pinetree cung cap
cac ing dung hién dai, d& str dung dé khach hang giao dich chimg khoan nhanh chéng, tim hiéu thong
tin va quan 1y tai san thun tién. Vi mong mudn trd thanh ngudi déng hanh tin cdy, Pinetree da ap
dung chinh sach phi giao dich 0% tron doi ngay tir dau cho tat ca cac nha dau tu. Vi vy trong nim
2022, Pinetree da dat duoc s6 tai khoan mé méi ting gap gan 4,2 1an so voi nam 2021.

Especially, at Pinetree, investors can easily open a securities trading account with the eKYC account
opening utility on Pinetree's app or website in just 2 minutes, and can also use the E-contract
completion service. or get a free hard copy at home provided by Viettel post. Pinetree provides
modern, easy-to-use applications for customers to quickly trade securities, find information and
manage assets conveniently. With the desire to become a trusted companion, Pinetree has applied it
mainly. lifetime 0% trading fee book from the beginning for all investors. So in 2022, Pinetree has
achieved an increase of nearly 4.2 times the number of new accounts opened compared to 2021.

Hoat dong dich vu hd tro' /Supporting services activities

Giao dich ky quy 1a dich vu hd trg von cho khach hang duéi hinh thirc vay von dé thyc hién giao dich
mua chimg khoén nam trong danh muc quy dinh cia UBCK. Véi danh muyc chimg khoén cho vay da
dang, ty 1& hd trg von dén 50%, khach hang c6 thé nhanh chéng gia han khoan vay véi mirc 13i suat
thap (9%/nam dén hét 31/12/2022). Viéc sir dung dich vu giao dich ky quy tai Pinetree s& gitip khach
hang gia tang loi suat dau tu v6i chi phi vén thip nhat thi trudng.

Margin trading is a service to lend money for customer to purchase securities on the list of margin
stock based regulation of SSC. With a diversified margin stock list, capital support ratio up to 50%,
customers can quickly extend their loans at low interest rates (9%/year until 31/12/2022). The use of
margin trading services at Pinetree will help customers increase their investment yields with the
lowest cost of capital in the market.

Trung tm thong tin 14 dich vu hd trg cung cép thong tin cho nha dau tw. Xuat phat tir mong mudn tao
gia tri gia tang cho khach hang, cac ing dung cua Cong ty (Alphatrading, Webtrading, PineX,
Stock123...) bén canh cung cép céc tién ich co ban lién quan dén giao dich, déu bo sung cac tién ich
tim kiém thong tin dé dang vé chimg khoan, thi truong, kinh té vi mo. ..

Information center is an information support service for investor. Stemming from the desire to create
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added value for customers, the Company's applications (Alphatrading, Webtrading, PineX,
Stock123...) in addition to providing basic utilities related to transactions, also supplement
information utilities to search for stocks, markets, macroeconomics...

Pang dang héa hoat dong kinh doanh nhim dwa dén nhiéu san phim, dich chét lwong dén
Khach hang /Diversifying business activities to bring more products and quality services to
customers

Cung véi su dau tu, phat trién nén tang sd phuc vu Nha dau tu, Cong ty dd xay dung cac chinh sach
ngudn lirc phtt hop nhdm thu hut cac nhan su tai ning cho hoat dong méi ciia Cong ty nhu mang
Ngan hang dau tu va Ty doanh. Bén canh phat trién nén tang nham tao thuan tién cho khach hang
trong qua trinh giao dich, Cong ty dinh hudng tim kiém, cung cip va gidi thidu cac co hoi dau tu,
nham da dang hoa cac san pham dau tu cho khach hang. Pay s& 13 muc tiéu hoat dong cua bd phan
Ngén hang dau tu va Ty doanh ctia Cong ty, v6i phuong cham dong hanh phat trién ciing khach hang
trén con dudng di dén ty do tai chinh va phat trién tai san.

Along with the investment and development of a digital platform for investors, Pinetree has developed
appropriate policies to attract talented personnel for new activities such as investment banking and
proprieraty trading. In addition to developing platforms to facilitate customers in the transaction
process, Pinetree aims to seek, provide and introduce investment opportunities, in order to diversify
investment products for customers. This will be the operational target of the investment banking and
proprieraty trading of Pinetree, with the motto of accompanying customers on the path to financial
freedom and asset development.

Co ciu doanh thu ciia Cong ty giai doan 2020-2022 /The revenue structure in the period 2020-
2022

Pon vi: Triéu dong /Unit: Million dong

Co cAu DTHD 2022 2021 2020

Structure of Gia tri %DT Gia tri %DT Gia tri %DT
operating revenue Value % revenue Value % revenue Value 9% revenue

DT Moi gidi
Brokerage revenue
Lai tir cac khoan
cho vay va phai thu  122,727.65 56.3% 89,115.08 61.7% 16,205.83 33.8%
Margin Revenue

DT tu doanh

Prorietary trading 28,242.07 13.0%  10,330.56 7.2% 308.88 0.6%
revenue

Doanh thu khéac
Other revenue

TONG /TOTAL 217,992.05 100.0% 144,321.55 100.0% 47,941.88 100.0%

34,011.84 15.6% 35,032.28 24.3% 11,288.42 23.5%

33,010.50 15.1% 9,843.63 6.8% 20,138.74 42.0%

M@t s6 chi tiéu vé tinh hinh tai chinh ciia Cong ty /Some indicators of the financial situation of

Pinetree

Pon vi % ting giam

Chi tiéu /Indicators Unit % increase/decrease

Tong tai san

Déng 2,533,215,197,432 2,131,428,431,858 18.9%
Total assets




% tang gidam
% increase/decrease

Chi tiéu /Indicators

Cac khoan cho vay Pdng 871,586,956,636 1,685 666,532,157 -48.3%
Loans

No phai tra Pong  1,055,394,693,035  666,656,362,542 58.3%
Liabilities

Von chu so hiru Ddng  1,477,820,504,397 1,464,772,069,316 0.9%
Owner’s equity

Doanh thu hoat dong Pong  217,992,053,355  144,321,547,341 51.0%
Operating revenue

Loi nhugn trudc thue Ddng 17,222,320,722  25,382,657,607 -32.1%
Profit before tax ’

Loi nhuan sau thu Ddng 13,048,435,081  25,382,657,607 -48.6%

Profit after tax

Tinh hinh tai chinh /Financial situation

Cong ty tiép tuc duy tri sy 6n dinh va dam bao kha ning an toan tai chinh nham xAy dung nén tang
vimg chic cho Cong ty trong qué trinh kinh doanh.

Regarding the financial situation, the Company continues to maintain stability and ensure financial
safety to build a solid foundation for the Company in the business process.

Chi tiét khoan phai thu giai doan 2021-2022 /The detail receivables for the period 2021-2022

% tang giam

Chi tiéu /Indicators % increase
/decrease

Pong  871,586,956,636 1,685,666,532,157 -48.3%

Céc khoan cho vay
Loans
Cho vay hoat dong Margin
Margin balance
Cho vay hoat dong ing
trude Pong  110,058,519,961  481,141,534,296 -77.1%
Advance balance
Céc khoan phai thu
Receivables
Tra trude cho nguoi ban
Advanced payments to Pong 644,254,496 1,608,436,050 -59.9%
suppliers
Phai thu cac dich vu CTCK
cung cép
Receivables from services Pong 60,579,592 311,573,427 -80.6%
provided by securities
company
Céc khoan phai thu khac
Other receivables

Pong  761,528,436,675 1,204,524,997,861 -36.8%

Dong 22,042,617,945 9,024,311,509 144.3%

Pong 1,193,721,823 670,741,878 78.0%

2. Danh gia hoat dong khac cia Cong ty nam 2022 /Evaluation of other activities of the
Company in 2022:

Veé cong nghé thong tin: Vi dinh hudng phat trién nén tang tai chinh s6, cung cap cho Khach hang
cac dich vu truc myén, dé dang va thuan tién trong viéc str dung va dap ung da dang nhu cau dau tu,
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Cong ty da dau tur nang cip hé thong phan cimg nhdm ting cuong kha ning dap mg nhu ciu trong
hién tai va tuong lai, cling nhu dam bao sy an toan khi s6 hoa hoat dong. Bén canh do, Cong ty cling
da dau tu xay dung lai hé thong phin mém nhdm dong bo hoa tat ca cac hoat dong, san pham nham
tao sur thudn tién cho Khach hang trong qua trinh giao dich. Vi phuong cham, con ngudi 1a thanh t6
quan trong nhét trong sy phat trién hé sinh thai tai chinh s6, Cong ty da thuc hién cac chinh sach dé
thu hut nhan sy tai nang trong linh vuc phat trién cong nghe, nhim dem dén co hoi dé déy manh viéc
hoan thi¢n hé sinh thai tai chinh sé.

About IT: With the orientation of developing a digital financial platform, providing customers with
online services, easy and convenient to use and meet a variety of investment needs, the Company has
invested in upgrading the system. hardware to enhance the ability to meet current and future needs,
as well as ensure the safety of digital operations. Besides, the Company has also invested in
rebuilding the software system to synchronize all activities and products to create convenience for
customers during the transaction. With the motto, people are the most important element in the
development of the digital financial ecosystem, the Company has implemented policies to attract
talented personnel in the field of technology development, in order to provide opportunities to
promote the improvement of the digital financial ecosystem.

Vé hoat ddng kiém soat riii ro: Bén canh cac cong viéc thudng nhat trong qua trinh kiém soét riii ro
cua hoat dong, Pinetree da thuc hién hoan chinh cac quy trinh nghiép vu lién quan cung véi cac quy
trinh, quy ché hién c6 nham déap tmg dugc nhu cau quan tri rdi ro, ddm bao an toan trong hoat dong
cta Cong ty ma van dap tmg duoc yéu cau ciia sy phat trién. Cong ty tiép tuc t6 chirc mot s budi tap
huén chuyén mon cho bd phan nghiép vu moi gidi, cham soc khach hang. Cac quy trinh nghiép vu
tiép tuc duoc cap nhat nham phu hop véi tinh hinh thuc té va yéu cAu clia phap luat. Ban Lanh dao
Pinetree xac dinh hoat dong kiém soat tuan thii noi bo 1a ngudn thong tin quan trong giip Hoi dong
Quan tri, C6 dong ndm rd hoat dong cong ty va c6 chinh sach, chién lugc phi hop.

About risk control activities: In addition to the daily work in the process of risk control of operations,
Pinetree has completed relevant business processes with existing processes and regulations to meet
the risk management needs to ensure safety in the Company's operations and still meet the
requirements of development. The company continues to organize a number of professional training
for the brokerage and customer care department. Business processes continue to be updated to suit
the actual situation and legal requirements. The BOM of Pinetree determines that internal
compliance control is an important source of information to help the Board of Directors and
shareholders understand the company's operations and have appropriate policies and strategies.

3. Ké hoach kinh doanh niim 2023 /The business plan for 2023:

Trong nam 2023, Cong ty dat cac chi tiéu kinh doanh nhu sau:
In 2023, the Company sets the following business targets

o on : I K& hoach nim 2023
Chi tiéu /Indicators Pon vi /Unit 2023’ Plan
Doanh thu hoat dong A
Operating Revenue Dong 247,200,000,000
Loi nhuan trude thué A
Profit before tax bong 8,500,000,000

Kinh trinh Dai hoi xem xét va thong qua.
For the General Meeting of Shareholders consideration and approval.



TONG GIAM POC
GENERAL DIRECTOR

Lee Jun Hyuck
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BAO CAO CUA BAN KIEM SOAT /REPORT OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

TAI PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023
AT THE 2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Kinh thua Dai hdi,
To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

Ban Kiém soat (“BKS”) Cong ty ¢ phan Chimg khoan Pinetree (“Pinetree”/“Cong ty”) béo céo Dai
hoi dong C6 déng Thuong nién ndm 2023 (“Pai hdi”) nhu sau:

The Board of Supervisory (“BOS”) of Pinetree Securities Corporation (“Pinetree”) would like to
submit to the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders as follow:

1.  Hoat dong ctia BKS nam 2022 /Activities of the BOS in 2022
1.1. Co cau ciia BKS /Structure of the BOS

Thanh phan BKS tai thoi diém 31/12/2022 nhu sau:
The members of BOS at 31/12/2022 as follow:

- Ba Chu Thi Lua — Truéng BKS /Ms. Chu Thi Lua — Head of BOS

- Ong Lee Jun Hyeob — Thanh vién BKS /Mr. Lee Jun Hyeob — Member
- Ong Kim Ji Yoon — Thanh vién BKS /Mr. Kim Ji Yoon — Member

1.2. Hoat dong ctiia BKS nam 2022 /Operation of the BOS in 2022

Trong nam 2022, BKS di thyc hién va tién hanh cac hoat dong theo Diéu 18 cua Pinetree ciing nhu
tuan tha cac quy dinh khéc cta phap luat:

In 2022, the BOS has performed the following activities in accordance with the Charter of Pinetree
and other regulations of laws:

- Thuyc hién gidm sat hoat dong va viéc tuan thu theo quy dinh cua phéap luat va Piéu 1 Cong ty
d6i voi Hoi dong Quan tri (“HPQT?), Tong Giam ddc va ban lanh dao trong viéc quan 1y, diéu
hanh Cong ty.

Monitoring the operation and compliance with the provisions of law and the Charter of the
Company for the Board of Directors (“BOD ”), General Director, management board in the
management and administration of the Company.

- Tham gia cac cudc hop ciia HDQT va mot s6 budi hop ctia ban lanh dao Pinetree vé ké hoach
kinh doanh nam va b4o c4o tinh hinh thyuc hién ké hoach nam.
Participate in meetings of the BOD and a number of meetings of the management board of
Pinetree on annual business plan and report on the implementation of the annual plan.

- Thudng xuyén kiém soat hoat dong sir dung von ciia Pinetree, theo ddi luan chuyén von tai san
cua Pinetree.



Regularly control the operation of capital use of Pinetree, track asset rotation of Pinetree.

- Kiém soat cac bao co tai chinh hang quy, sau thang va bio cio ndm nham danh gia tinh hop Iy
va chinh x4c ctia cac s liéu tai chinh trude khi dé trinh HDQT.
Supervise the quarter, six-month and annual financial statements in order to assess the
reasonableness and accuracy of financial data before submitting to the BOD.

- Dé xuét lya chon Cong ty Kiém toan doc 1ap (1a Cong ty Kiém toan c6 trong danh sach cac

Cong ty Kiém toan dwoc UBCKNN chip thudn kiém toén cho cac o chie phat hanh, to chic
niém yét va té chirc kinh doanh chimg khoan ndm 2022 va c6 kinh nghiém, uy tin trong cong
tac kiém toan cho cac Cong ty niém yét).
Proposing the selection of an Independent Auditing Company (an Auditing Company in the list
of Auditing Companies approved by SSC to audit [securities] issuing organizations, listing
organizations and securities trading organizations in 2022 and has experience and reputation
in auditing for listed companies).

- Kiém soét viéc chap hanh ché d¢ chi tiéu noi bo tai Cong ty.
Control the compliance with the internal spending regime at the Company.

Trong nam 2022, BKS dugc cung cip day du thong tin vé cac quyét dinh cia HPQT, Tong Giam
dbc, ban diéu hanh; dé)ng thdi nhan duoc sy hd tro va tao diéu kién thuén loi dé phuc vu cho cong tac
kiém tra, giam sat ctia minh. HDQT va BKS lu6n c6 sy trao doi thong tin trong cc van dé lién quan
dén dinh hudng cta Pinetree, bam sat nhiém vu dugc giao.

In 2022, the BOS were provided with sufficient information on the decisions of the BOD and General
Director; management board; and at the same time received support and favorable conditions for
inspection and supervision. The BOD and BOS always exchanged information on issues related to the
direction of Pinetree, closely following the assigned tasks.

2. Két qua giam sat ciia BKS /The result of supervising activities of BOS 2022

BKS danh gia trong nam 2022, HDQT, Tong Giam dbc va ban Ianh dao Pinetree da tuan thu cac quy
dinh ctia phap luat trong cong tac chi dao, quan 1y va diéu hanh. Cac thanh vién HDQT, Téng Giam
dbc, va can bo quan ly da thyc hién ding chirc nang, nhiém vu dugc giao theo quy dinh cua Luat
Doanh nghiép, Diéu 1¢ Cong ty va Nghi quyét DHDCD.

BOS evaluated that, in 2022, BOD, General Director and management board of Pinetree have
complied with the provisions of the law in administrative management. The members of the BOD,
General Director and the management staff have implemented the functions and tasks assigned in
accordance with the Enterprise Law, the Company Charter and the BOD' Resolution.

2.1. Nhan xét vé hoat dong ciia HPQT /Evaluation of the management of BOD

- T6 chirc thanh cong DPHDCP thuong nién nam 2022.
Successfully organized the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

- HPQT d3 tién hanh cac cude hop theo quy dinh dé trién khai cac Nghi quyét ciia PHDCD phu
hop véi tinh hinh hoat dong Cong ty. Cac cudc hop dé tuan thu quy dinh, quy ché cua Cong ty.
BKS ciing dd dugc cung cap day du cac tai liéu, Bién ban, Nghi quyét ctia cac cude hop HDQT.
The BOD has conducted meetings according to regulations to implement the resolutions of the
GMS, in accordance with the operation situation of the Company. Meetings are in compliance
with regulations, statues of the Company. BOS has also been provided with full documents,
resolutions and minutes of meetings of the BOD.

- Trong céac phién hop, cac thanh vién cia HDQT déu tham gia dﬁy du, lam viéc trach nhiém,



tuan thu phap lut va dit loi ich Cong ty 1én hang dau nham dua ra cac quyét dinh chinh xac, kip
thoi phuc vu hoat dong kinh doanh Cong ty.

During its meetings, the members of the BOD fully participate, work responsibly, comply with
the law and consider the Company's interests as first priority in order to make accurate and
timely decisions for Company business operation.

Céc Nghi quyét, Quyét dinh cia HPQT tuan tha dung theo Piéu 16 Cong ty va cac quy dinh
phap luat cd lién quan.

Resolutions and Decisions of the BOD comply with the Company's Charter and relevant legal
provisions.

HDPQT ciing di thyuc hién viée cong bd thong tin dinh ky, dot xuét theo ding quy dinh caa Uy
ban Ching khoan Nha nudc va cta phap luat.

The BOD has also made periodic and extraordinary disclosure of information in accordance
with the regulations of the State Securities Commission and the Law.

Qua qua trinh giam séat, BKS khong phat hién bat ky bat thudng nao trong cac hoat dong quan tri, diéu
hanh cia HPQT.

Through the supervision process, the BOS did not find anything unusual in the management and
administration activities of the BOD.

2.2. Nhan xét vé hoat dong ciia Tong Giam doc /Evaluation of the executive work of the General

Director

Téng Giam ddc dd co nhiéu nd luc trong viée trién khai cac Nghi quyét, Quyét dinh cua
DHDCP va HDPQT. Trong qua trinh diéu hanh, Tong Giam dbc da c6 bao céo vé tinh hinh hoat
dong trong thang va ké hoach, dinh hudng duy kién ciia thang tiép theo bao cdo HDQT.

The General Director has made great efforts in implementing resolutions and decisions of the
GMS and the BOD. In the process of management, the General Director has reported on the
operation situation in the month and the plan and expected orientation of the following month to
the BOD.

Cung cép dﬁy du tai liéu cho BKS phuc vu viée kiém tra, gidm sat.
Provide sufficient documents for the BOS * inspection and supervision.

Qua qua trinh giam séat, BKS khong phat hién bat ky bat thuong nao trong cac hoat dong ctia Tong
Giam dbc Cong ty.

Through the supervision process, the BOS did not find anything unusual in the activities of the
General Director.

3.

Ké hoach hoat dong ciia BKS nim 2023 /Operation plan of the BOS in 2023

Tiép tuc duy tri hidu qua trong pham vi chirc ning ciia BKS.
Continue to maintain efficiency within the functions of the BOS.

Khéng ngimg ting cuong su phdi hop gitta BKS, HDQT, Tong Giam dbc va ban lanh dao
nham ting cudng sy hiéu qua trong cong tac quan tri Cong ty.

Constantly strengthening the coordination between the BOS, BOD, General Director and
management board to enhance the effectiveness of operation management over Company.

Tang cudng giam sat tinh hinh hoat dong ctia HPQT, Téng Giam ddc va cac can bd quan 1y
trong pham vi chirc ning nham giam st va kién nghi nhimg bién phap trong to chirc, quan 1y,
diéu hanh hoat dong kinh doanh cta Cong ty.

Strengthen the supervision of the operation of the BOD, the General Director and Team leaders
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within its scope of functions to supervise and recommend measures in the organization,
management and administration of business activities of the Company.

Kinh trinh Dai hoi xem xét va thong qua.
For the General Meeting of Shareholders consideration and approval.

TM. BAN KIEM SOAT /FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOS
TRUONG BAN /HEAD OF BOS

Chu Thi Lua



CONG TY CP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE  CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION Péc l4p - Tu do - Hanh phic
----------------- SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

. Independence — Freedom — Happiness
So /No: [2023/TT-HPQT

Ha Noi, [/ /2023 /Hanoi, , 2023

TO TRINH CUA HQI PONG QUAN TRI /PROPOSALS OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR

V/Iv: Thong qua c4c nodi dung vé hoat dong kinh doanh
Subject: Approval on some business operations

Kinh thwa Pai hoi,
To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

Hoi ddng Quan tri (“HPQT”) Cong ty C6 phan Ching khoéan Pinetree (“Pinetree”/“Cong ty”)
kinh trinh Dai hoi ddng C6 dong Thuong nién nam 2023 (“PHPCP”/“Pai hgi”) xem xét va
théng qua cac noi dung sau:

The Board of Directors (“BOD”) of Pinetree Securities Corporation (“Pinetree”) hereby submit
to the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“GMS "/ “Meeting ) for consideration and
approval of some contents as follows:

I.  Théng qua B&o céo Tai chinh nim 2022 dia kiém toan /Approval on the audited
Financial Statements 2022:

HDQT kinh trinh DPHDCD thong qua Bao c4o Tai chinh nam 2022 cua Pinetree da duogc kiém
toan bai Cong ty TNHH Ernst & Young Viét Nam va da dugc cong bé thong tin theo quy dinh,
dong thoi duoc ding tai trén website cua Cong ty (www.pinetree.vn), bao gom:

The BOD would like submits to the GMS for approval on the Financial Statements 2022 audited
by Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited and disclosed in accordance with laws and regulations, and
posted on the Company’s website at (Wwww.pinetree.vn), including:

Béo céo cua Kiém toan doc lap (trong d6 ¥ kién cua kiém toan vién theo béo céo kiém toan
doc lap sb 61591189/22987493: “Theo y kién cua ching t6i, Bao céo tai chinh kém theo da
phan anh trung thuc va hop ly, trén cac khia canh trong yéu, tinh hinh tai chinh cia Cong ty
tai ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2022, két qua hoat dong, tinh hinh luu chuyén tién té va tinh hinh
bién dong vén chi s¢ hitu cho nam tai chinh két thdc cing ngay, pht hop véi cac Chuan
muc ké toan Viét Nam, Ché do ké toan doanh nghiép Viét Nam, cac huong dan ké toan ép
dung cho cac cong ty ching khoan va cac quy dinh phép Iy khac co lién quan dén viéc lap
va trinh bay Béo céo tai chinh™).

Independent auditor’s report (opinion of auditor according to independent auditor’s report
No 61591189/22987493: “In our opinion, the accompanying financial statement give a true
and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2022, and of the results of its operations, its cash flow and its change in equity
for the year ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System, accounting guidance applicable to securities company and
the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of financial
statements”).


http://www.pinetree.vn/
http://www.pinetree.vn/

Béao cao tinh hinh tai chinh tai 31/12/2022.

Statement of financial position as at 31/12/2022.

Béo cao két qua hoat dong nam 2022.
Income statement for the year 2022.

B4o céo luu chuyén tién té.

Cash flow statement.

B4o c4o tinh hinh bién dong vén cha s hiu.
Statement of changes in owner’s equity.
Thuyét minh bao céo tai chinh.

Notes to the financial statements.

Trong d6 /In which:

1.

2.

Mot sb chi tiéu co ban trén Bao cao tinh hinh tai chinh tai 31/12/2022 di duoc kiém toan:
Key terms provided in the audited Statement of financial position as at 31/12/2022:

TT CA4c chi tidu S6 tién (PoNQ)
NO Items Value (Dong)

| | Tong Taisdn 2,553,215,197,432
Total assets

p | Taisan ngan han 2,461,897,420,174
Current assets
Tai san taij chinh 2,454,967 641,053
Financial assets
Tai san ngan han khéac 6,929 779,121
Other current assets

p | Taisan daihan 71,317,777,258
Non-current assets
Tai san tai chinh dai han

i . 0

Long-term financial assets
Tai san co dinh 58,028,207,669
Fixed assets
Tai san dai han khac 13.289,569.589
Other long-term assets
Tong Ngudn vén

I Total Liabilities and Owner’s Equity 2,953,215,197,432

y | Nophaitra 1,055,394.693,035
Liabilities

p | Vonchusohiu 1,477 820,504,397
Owner’s Equity

Mot s chi tiéu co ban trén B&o cao thu nhap toan dién nam 2022 da duoc kiém toén:
Key terms provided in the audited Income statement for the year:

TT Céc chi tiéu S6 tién (Pong)
No Items Value (dong)
1 Doanh thu hoat do
oant T nogt dong 217,992,053,355
Operating revenue
2 Chi phi hoat dong 99,473,057,776




TT CA4c chi tiéu Sé tién (PoNg)
No Items Value (dong)
Operating expenses

3 | Doanh thu hoat dong tai chinh
Finance income

4 | Chi phi tai chinh

Finance expense

5 | Chiphiquanly CTCK

General and administrative expense
6 | Kétqua hoat dong

3,133,229,892

48,801,251,381

55,177,100,786

. . 17,673,873,304
Operating profit
7 | Thu nhap va Chi phi khac
4P P (451,552,582)
Other income and other expense
8 | Loi nhuan trugc thué
o1 htian fruoc thue 17,222,320,722
Profit before tax
9 | Thué thu nhap doanh nghié
© unhap gniep (4,173,885,641)
CIT expense
10 | Loi nhui thué
o1 nntian sau thue 13,048,435,081

Profit after tax

Il.  Théng qua viéc lwa chon don vi kiém toan niam 2023 /Approval on appointment of the
audit firm for the year 2023:

HDQT kinh trinh BPHDCP thong qua viéc iy quyén cho Nguoi dai dién theo phap luat cia Cong
ty duoc lya chon, dam phan, giao két hop ddng/thoa thuan véi mot trong cac Cong ty kiém toan
dugc Uy ban Ching khoan Nha nudc chap thuan kiém toan cho don vi ¢6 lgi ich cong ching
thudc linh vuc chitng khodn nam 2023 dé thuc hién kiém toan va soat xét Bao céo tai chinh, B4o
cao Ty I¢ An toan Tai chinh trong nam 2023 cua Pinetree.

The BOD would like to submit to the GMS for approval to authorize the Legal Representative to
select, negotiate, sign contracts/agreement with one of the independent audit firms which are
approved to audit entities having public interests in the securities sector in 2023 by the State
Securities Commission of Vietnam to audit and review the Financial Statement, Financial Safety
Ratio Report in 2023 of Pinetree.

I1l. Thdng qua sira d6i, bd sung Piéu Ié Cong ty Cé phan Chirng khoan Pinetree /Approval
on amendments and supplementations to the Charter of Pinetree
HBQT kinh trinh PHPCP thdng qua Diéu 1é sira doi bd sung (Piéu 1é dinh kém theo To trinh

nay).
The BOD submit to the GMS for approval on the amendments and supplementation to the Charter
(attached Charter complying with this Proposal).

IV. Thoéng qua chinh sach thu lao cho HPQT, BKS /Approval on remuneration for the
BOD, BOS for the year 2023

HDQT kinh trinh BPHPCP thong qua chinh sach thu lao cho thanh vién HPQT, BKS nam 2023
nhu sau:

The BOD submit to the GMS for approval on the remuneration for the members of the BOD, BOS
for the year 2023, as follows:

Thi lao HPQT : 0 ddng/thang /dong/month



Members of BOD

Thu lao BKS : 0 dong/thang /dong/month
Members of BOS

Kinh trinh Dai hoi xem xét va thong qua.

For the GMS’s consideration and approval.

TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Lee Jun Hyuck
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LEGAL BASIS
Pursuant to:

- Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 adopted by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Viet Nam dated 17 June 2020 as amended and supplemented from time to time and
its guidelines;

- Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 adopted by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Viet Nam dated 26 November 2019 as amended and supplemented from time to time
and its guidelines;

- Relevant Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors and
General Director of the Company.

Chapter |
GENERAL PROVISION

Article 1. Interpretation of terms
1. In this Company's Charter, the terms below are construed as follows:
a. "Company" means Pinetree Securities Corporation;

b. "Charter capital” means total face value of issued shares which have been fully paid by
shareholders and recorded to Company's Charter;

c. "Law on Securities" means the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 adopted by the
National Assembly of Socialist Republic of Viet Nam dated 26 November 2019 as amended and
supplemented from time to time;

d. "Law on Enterprises” means Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14adopted by the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam dated 17 June 2020 as amended and
supplemented from time to time;

e. “Management Personnel” include members of the Board of Directors, General
Directorof the Company;

f. “Related person” means any individual or organization related to each other in
accordance with the Law on Securities and Law on Enterprises;

g. Vietnam means the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;
h. "State Securities Commission" means the State Securities Commission of Vietnam;

2. In this Charter any reference to one or some statutory provisions or other documents
shall include any amendments, modifications or replacements thereof.

3. The headings (chapters or articles of this Charter) are inserted for convenience only and
do not affect the contents of this Charter.

4. Any words or expressions defined in the Law on Enterprises and the Law on Securities
(if not contrary to the subject or context) shall have the same meaning as prescribed herein.

Article 2. Name, legal forms, head-office, operation network and operation terms of
the Company

1. Name of the Company:

a. Name in Vietnamese: Cong ty c¢6 phan Ching khoan Pinetree
b. Name in English: Pinetree Securities Corporation

c. Transaction name: CoOng ty C6 phan Chimng khoéan Pinetree



d. Abbreviated name: Pinetree Securities

2. Lisence on Establishment and Securities Operation No. 10/GPHDKD issued by the State
Securities Commission on 18 February 2003 and its amenments and supplements from time to
time.

3. Legal forms of the Company:

The Company is a Joint Stock Company with legal entity status and licensed to establish
and operate under the Law on Securities and applicable laws of Vietnam.

4. Head-office of the Company::

a. Address: 20th Floor, TNR Tower, 54A Nguyen Chi Thanh street, Lang Thuong ward,
Dong Da district, Hanoi

b. Telephone: 024.62761818 Fax: 024.62750077 Email: contact@pinetree.vn
c. Website: www.pinetree.vn

5. Operation network:

a. The Company may establish its branches, transaction offices and representative offices
to conduct Company’s operational objectives in accordance with the decision of the Board of
Directors to the extent permitted by laws;

b. Branches, transaction offices, representative offices are units of the Company, for which
the Company shall bear full responsibilities;

c. The company only works on securities business, provides securities services in the
locations of head-office, branches and transaction offices which have been approved by the State
Securities Commission;

d. Name of branches, transaction offices, representative offices shall comprise of name of
the Company and the branch, transaction office, representative office phrase and their own name
to distinguish.

6. Term of operation:

Unless the operation is terminated prior to the expiry of the duration in accordance with
this Charter, the term of operation of the Company shall be indefinite from the establishment date.

Article 3. Legal representative

1. The legal representative of the Company is the individual that exercises the rights and
fulfills the obligations when making transactions on behalf of the Company, represents the
enterprise to act as the person lodging a petition for resolution of a civil matter, as the plaintiff,
defendant, and person with relevant interests and duties before the arbitral tribunal, the court,
exercises other rights and fulfills other obligations as prescribed by laws.

2. The legal representative of the Company is the General Director.

3. In case the legal representative goes overseas, he must authorize in writing another
person who resides in Vietnam to exercise the rights and fulfill the obligations of the legal
representative. In this case, the legal representative is still responsible for the performance of
authorised rights and obligations.

4. In case the authorization term under clause 3 of this Article expires without any other
authorization and the legal representative of the Company has not returned to Vietnam, the
authorized person shall continue exercising the rights and fulfill the obligations of the Company's
legal representative within the authorised scope until the legal representative of the Company
returns to work or until the Board of Directors decide to appoint another person as legal
representative of the Company.
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5. If the legal representative is not present in Vietnam for more than 30 days without
authorizing another person to act as the legal representative, or such person deceased, disappears,
is prosecuted for criminal liability, is subject to temporary imprisonment, serves a prison sentence,
IS subject to administrative measures in a compulsory drug rehabilitation establishment or
compulsory educational establishment, has his or her capacity for civil acts restricted or lost, has
cognitive difficulties or difficulties with behavioral control, or is prohibited by a court from
assuming a certain position, from practicing or from doing certain work, then the Board of
Directors shall designate another person to act as the legal representative.

6. Courts and other agencies authorized to perform legal proceedings have the right to
appoint the legal representative to participate in legal proceedings in accordance with law..

Article 4. Scope of business

1. The Company's scope of business includes:
a. Securities brokerage;

b. Securities investment advisory;

c. Securities Proprietary Trading;

d. Underwriting.

2. In addition to the securities business operations specified in Clause 1 of this Article, the
Company also provides securities depository services, financial advisory, entrustment
management of securities trading accounts of investors, fund certificate distribution and other
financial services as stipulated by the Ministry of Finance.

3. The Company may supplement or withdraw from one or a number of business operations
referred to in clause 1 of this Article after being approved by the State Securities Commission.

Article 5. Operational objectives

The Company's operational objectives are to expand operation, develop business, create
jobs, increase profits for shareholders.

Article 6. Operational principles
1. Comply with the law on securities and securities market and the relevant legislation.
2. Perform business activities in a fair and truthful manner.

3. Issue operational processes, internal control and risk management procedures, and
professional ethics rules in line with the business operations of the Company.

4. Ensure human, capital and physical resources necessary to service securities operations
in compliance with laws.

5. Have separate offices, personnel, data and reporting systems between operational
departments to avoid conflicts of interest between the Company and clients, and between clients.
The Company must disclose to clients any conflicts of interest that may arise between the
Company, practitioners and clients.

6. Arrange securities practitioners whose competences match with business operations.
Securities practitioners who implement securities self-trading may not concurrently perform
securities brokerage operation.

7. The price forecast or transaction recommendations related to a specific type of securities
on the media must clearly indicate the analysis basis and information sources.

Article 7. Rights of the Company



1. Exercise all the rights under the provisions of the Law on Enterprises if those rights do
not conflict with the provisions of the Law on Securities.

2. Offer services on securities and financial services as permitted by laws.
3. Collect fees and charges in line with the regulations of the Ministry of Finance.

4. Prioritize the employment of domestic workers, ensure the rights and interests of
employees under the provisions of the Labor Law, respect the rights to organize and participate in
political organizations, political - social organizations in accordance with laws.

Article 8. Obligations of the Company
1. General principles:
a. Properly fulfill its obligations under the provisions of the Law on Enterprises;

b. Set up internal audit, internal control, risk management systems and supervise to prevent
conflicts of interest within the Company and in transactions with related persons;

c. Adhere to the principles of corporate governance in accordance with laws and the
Charter of the Company;

d. Comply with regulations on financial safety as stipulated by the Ministry of Finance;

f. Keep adequate documents and accounts reflecting transactions of the Company and
clients in a detailed and accurate manner;

g. Organize selling of securities or facilitate selling of securities of clients in case they does
not own such securities and provide securities lending services for clients in accordance with the
provisions of the Ministry of Finance;

h. Comply with the regulations of the Ministry of Finance on the performance of the
securities business operations;

i. Implement accounting, auditing, statistical regulations, financial obligations as stipulated
by the relevant legislation;

j. Implement information disclosure, reporting and archiving in accordance with the Law
on Enterprises, Law on Securities and the guidelines thereof;

k. Contribute to payment assistance funds according to regulations;
2. Obligations to shareholders:

a. Clearly define responsibilities between the General Meeting of Shareholders and the
Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisor for consistent
management in accordance with the provisions of law;

b. Establish communication systems with shareholders to ensure adequate provision of
information and fair treatment between the shareholders, ensuring the legitimate rights and
interests of shareholders;

c. Not to commit the following acts:

- Make commitment on income, profits for shareholders (except for shareholders holding
fixed dividend preference shares);

- lllegally hold benefits, income from shares of shareholders;

- Provide financing or guarantees to shareholders either directly or indirectly; lend in all
forms to major shareholders, members of the Board of Supervisor , members of the Board of
Directors, General Director, Chief Accountant, other management positions appointed by the
Board of Directors and persons related to of these subjects;



- Generate income to shareholders by redeeming shares from shareholders under the forms
against laws;

- Infringe upon the rights of shareholders such as: property rights, selection right, right to
fair dealing, right to information access and other legitimate rights and interests;

3. Obligations to clients:

a. To maintain the trust given by clients and and not to infringe property rights and other
legal interests of clients;

b. Separately manage money and securities of each client, separately manage money and
securities of clients with cash and securities of the Company. All monetary transactions of the
clients must be performed via bank. Not to misuse assets entrusted for management by clients,
transactions payment of clients and client securities deposited at the Company;

c. Sign a written contract with clients when offering services; provide complete and
truthful information to clients when performing services;

d. Give appropriate advice to clients only on the basis of efforts to gather following
information about the clients: income, financial situation, investment objectives, risk tolerance,
profit expectations and update information in accordance with the provisions of law. Ensure the
relevance of investment recommendations and advice that the Company gives to each client;

e. Take responsible for the reliability of the information disclosed to clients. Ensure clients
make investment decisions based on proper information provision, including the contents and risks
of products and services offered,;

f. Be careful not to create conflicts of interest with clients. If it is unavoidable, the
Company must inform clients and apply the necessary measures to ensure fair treatment to clients;

g. Give priority to perform client's order before Company's order;

h. Set up a specialized department to take responsibility for communication with clients
and resolve their questions and complaints;

i. Complete its obligations to clients in the best way;
J- Ensure confidentiality of client’s information:

- The Company is responsible for keeping confidentiality of information related to
securities and money ownership of clients, refuse to investigate, freeze, retain, transfer client's
assets without their prior consent;

- The provisions at this paragraph does not apply in the following circumstances:
+ Auditors perform audits of financial statements of the Company;

+ Provision of information at the request of the competent State authorities.
Article 9. Regulations on prohibition and restriction

1. Regulations applicable to the Company:

a. Not to make statements or guarantees to clients in terms of income or profits achieved
on their investment or guarantees to clients not to incur losses, except for investments in securities
with fixed income;

b. Not to agree or offer a specific interest rate or share profits/losses for the clients to entice
clients to participate in the transaction;

c. Not to directly or indirectly establish locations outside the transaction venues approved
by the State Securities Commission to sign a contract, receive orders and execute securities



transactions orders or perform payment of securities transactions with clients, except for online
trading;

d. Not to receive orders, perform payment transactions with other people rather than the
transaction account holder without the client's authorization in writing;

e. Not to use client's name or account to subscribe, perform securities transactions;

f. Not to appropriate securities, cash or temporary withhold securities of clients in the form
of custody under the Company's name;

g. Not to disclose client’s information unless agreed by the client or requested by the
competent State management agencies;

h. Not to perform acts that make clients and investors misunderstand the stock price;

i. Securities trading account opening contract must not contain agreements to evade legal
obligations of the Company without plausible reason, limit the compensation scope of the
Company without plausible reason or transfer risks from the Company to clients, force clients to
make the compensation obligation in an unfair manner and unfairly detrimental agreements for
clients;

2. Regulations applicable to securities practitioners:

a. Except for the cases of being elected as a representative of capital contribution as being
elected to the Company's management by the organization that owns the Company or organization
into which the Company invest, the securities practitioner may not::

- Concurrently work for other organizations that have ownership relationship with the
Company;

- Concurrently work for other securities companies, fund management companies;

- Concurrently act as Chife Executive Officer (GD) of an organization offering securities
to the public or listing organizations;

b. Only open accounts for their securities transactions (if any) in the Company. This
provision does not apply where the Company is not a member of the Stock Exchanges;

c. When conducting the operations of the Company, the securities practitioners shall carry
out transactions with clients on behalf of the Company and the Company shall be responsible for
all 10 operations of the securities practitioners. They may not use money or securities in the client's
account without the Company's authorization under the client's entrustment to the Company in
writing;

3. Regulations for members of the Board of Directors, Chief of Board of Supervisor,
General Director:

a. Members of Board of Directors of the Company may not concurrently be members of
the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Members, GD of other securities companies;

b. Chief of Board of Supervisor may not concurrently be a member of the Board of
Supervisor , manager of other securities companies;

c. General Director, Deputy General Director (if any) may not concurrently work for other
securities companies, fund management companies or enterprises. General Director, Deputy
General Director may not be a member of the Board of Directors, member of the Board of
Members of other securities companies;

Chapter 11
CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES, SHAREHOLDERS
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Section 1
CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES

Article 10. Charter Capital

The charter capital of the Company is VND 970,000,000,000 (in word: Eight hundred
fifteen billion Dong).

Article 11. Types of shares

1. The Company’s charter capital is divided into 97,000,000 shares. Each share shall have
a par value of VND10,000.

2. Classes of shares:
Ordinary shares: 97,000,000 shares;

3. Those who are entitled to purchase preference shares: Preference shares may be
converted into ordinary shares pursuant to a resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The method and ratios of conversion shall be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
within the framework of law.

4. Ordinary shares cannot be converted into preference shares. Preference shares may be
converted into ordinary shares under decisions of the Shareholders' Meeting. Conversion method
and rate shall be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with laws.

5. Characteristics of each class of shares:

Ordinary shares: Holders of ordinary shares are ordinary shareholders. Each ordinary share
has one (01) vote;

Article 12. Shareholder register

1. The Company shall make and keep the shareholder register rightly from the issuance
date of the License for Establishment and Operation.

2. The shareholder register must contain principal information as prescribed by the Law
on Enterprises.

3. Forms of shareholder register: Paper files or electronic files.

4. The shareholder register shall be kept at the head office of the Company or Vietnam
Securities Depository.

Article 13. Shares Certificates

1. Share certificates are certificates issued by the Company, book entries, or electronic data
which certify ownership of one or an amount of shares of the Company.

2. Share certificate must contain the seal of the Company and signature of Company's legal
representative in accordance with the provisions of the Law on Enterprises. If there is a mistake
in the contents and format of the share certificates issued by the Company, the rights and interests
of their holders may not be affected. The legal representative of the Company shall take
responsibility for the damage caused by such mistakes.

3. In case a share certificate is lost, damaged, or otherwise destroyed, the shareholder shall
be reissued with another share certificate at the shareholder's request based on Law on Enterprises.

Article 14. Share transfer

a. All shares may be transferred freely except otherwise provided for in the Law on
Enterprises, this Charter;
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b. Founding shareholders cannot transfer their shares in three (03) years’ time upon
incorporation. However, transfers among founding shareholders of the Company are permissible.
Moreover, the transfer of their ordinary shares to entities who are not founding shareholders must
acquire the approval of the General shareholders' meeting and abide by the laws. Such transfers
must maintain founding shareholders’ ratio of holdings as per current laws. Upon the expiration
of such time, restrictions imposed on founding sharcholders’ ordinary shares shall be lifted.
Transfer restrictions against founding shareholders shall only apply to capital shares purchased
upon the incorporation of the Company.

Article 15. Redemption of shares

1. The Company may only redeem shares upon satisfaction of all conditions and the
redemption ratio set out by law.

2. Cases of redemption of shares:
a. Redemption of shares at the shareholder’s request:

A shareholder may request the Company to redeem his shares if such shareholder votes
against the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders on: Reorganization of the Company;
amendment and supplementation of the contents of the Company's Charter concerning the rights
and obligations of shareholders. Such request shall be made in writing and sent to the Company
within 10 (ten) days since the approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders of the relevant
resolution.

b. Redemption of shares at the Company’s request:

The Company may redeem ordinary shares, dividend preference shares which have been
sold. The redemption ratio, method, procedures shall comply with the law on enterprises, securities
and securities market.

Article 16. Forms of increase and reduction of the charter capital

1. The Company may increase or reduce its charter capital as approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with current regulations.

2. Forms of increase of the Company’s charter capital:

- Issuing new shares to raise more capital in accordance with laws;

- Carrying over retained earnings and other valid capital sources in accordance with laws;
- Converting issued convertible bonds into shares;

- Issuing shares to pay dividends, issuing shares to increase the share capital from the
equity;

- Converting debts into equity capital under the agreement between the Company and
creditors.

3. The reduction of the charter capital shall be decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders provided that conditions for legal capital are ensured after capital reduction in
accordance with current regulations.

Section 2
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Article 17. Rights of shareholders
1. Rights of ordinary shareholders:
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- Attend and give opinions at the General Meetings of Shareholders and exercise the right
to vote directly or via an authorized representative or in another form permitted by law or the
Company’s charter. Each ordinary share has a vote;

- Receive dividends at a rate decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Sight, look up and make an extract of information about name and address of such
shareholder in the list of Shareholders with voting rights and request amendment of incorrect
information;

- Sight, look up and make an extract or copy of the Charter of the Company, the book of
minutes of meetings of the General Meeting of Shareholders and resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders;

- Transfer their shares to other persons, except for the cases stipulated in the Law on
Enterprises and this Charter;

- Be given priority in subscribing for new shares offered for sale in proportion to the
number of ordinary shares each Shareholder holds;

- Upon dissolution or bankruptcy of the Company, be distributed a part of the remaining
assets of the Company pro rata to its proportion of holding share in the Company in accordance
with laws;

2. A shareholder or group of shareholders, who holds at least 5% of overall ordinary shares
of the Company, shall be entitled to:

- Sight and make an extract of the book of minutes and resolutions of the Board of Directors
midyear and annual financial statements, reports of the Board of Supervisor and contracts and
transactions which must be approved by the Board of Directors and other data except for data
relating to commercial secrets or business secrets of the Company;

- Request the convening of a General Meeting of Shareholders in case that The Board of
Directors commits serious violations against the rights of shareholders, obligations of managers,
or make decisions ultra vires;

The request for convention of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be made in writing, bear
the full name, contact address, Nationality, ID/passport number if the shareholder is an individual,
name, enterprise code or number of organizational legal document, and headquarter address if the
shareholder is an organization; the holding and time of shares registration of each shareholder;
total shares of the whole group of shareholders and the proportion of shares to the Company’s
total shares; the basis and reason for requesting the convention of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. It shall be accompanied by documents and evidence on the breaches of the Board
of Directors, the seriousness of such breaches, or on the decision which falls outside its authority.

- Request the Board of Supervisor to check specific issues related to the management,
operation of the Company, when needed. The request shall be made in writing, bear the full name,
contact address, Nationality, ID/passport number if the shareholder is an individual; name,
headquarter address, enterprise code or number of organizational legal document if the shareholder
is an organization; the holding and time of shares registration of each shareholder; total shares of
the group of shareholders and the proportion of shares to the company’s total shares; the issues
that need inspecting, and inspection purposes;

3. The shareholder or group of shareholders that continuously holds at least 1% of total
ordinary shares is entitled to, whether single-handedly or on behalf of the Company, to initiate a
legal action regarding personal liability or joint liability against a Member of the Board of
Directors; General Director for refund of benefits or payment of compensation for loss to the
Company or to others in accordance with laws. Procedures for proceedings are prescribed by
corresponding regulations of law on civil proceedings.
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4. Shareholder or group of shareholders owning 10% or more of the total ordinary shares
has the right to nominate candidates for the Board of Directors or the Board of Supervisor. The
nomination procedure shall be in accordance with Law on Enterprise.

5. Domestic shareholders and foreign shareholders have the same rights and obligations.
No limitation on the ownership ratio of foreign shareholders, unless the law have other regulations.
The maximum ownership ratio of foreign shareholders is 100%.

Article 18. Obligations of shareholders

1. To pay in full and on time for shares for which the shareholder has committed to
subscribe and be responsible for debts and other asset obligations of the Company to the extent of
the capital contributed to the Company. Not to be permitted to withdraw from the Company the
capital contributed in any form, except for cases where such shares are re-deemed by the Company
or others in accordance with laws. In case a shareholder withdraws a part of or all of the share
capital contributed against this Clause, such shareholder and persons with related interests in the
Company are jointly responsible for the debts and other liabilities of the Company up to the value
of withdrawn shares and the damage caused;

2. To comply with the Company’s Charter, internal rules and regulations of the Company;

3. To observe resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of
Directors;

4. To preserve confidentiality of information provided by the Company pursuant to the
charter and law; and only to use information provided in order to perform and protect their lawful
rights and interests, and not to distribute, copy or send such information to other organizations or
individuals.

5. To perform other obligations as regulated by the Law on Enterprises, the Law on
Securities and the Company’s Charter.

Article 19. Authorized representatives of shareholders

1. Authorized representative of a shareholder is a person authorized in writing on behalf
of that shareholder to exercise the rights and fulfill the obligations in accordance with laws and
Company's Charter.

2. The appointment of authorized representative shall comply with the following
provisions: The shareholder as organization holding at least 10% of charter capital may appoint
up to three (03) representatives. In other cases, the shareholder may only authorize one (01)
representative.

3. If the shareholder being an organization appoints multiple authorized representatives,
the shares of each representative must be determined. If the shareholder fails to determine the
shares of each authorized representative, the shares shall be split equally among the
representatives.

4. The authorized representative must satisfy criteria and requirements as follow:

a. Not fall into the category of entities which are not entitled to establish and manage
enterprises in Vietnam according to the lawas prescribed by the Law on Enterprises;

b. The shareholder as organization being a State owned enterprise under the laws shall not
appoint any person with a family relationship with a manager of the company or the person having
authority to appoint the manager of the company as the authorized representative in another
company;

5. The appointment, dismissal or change of authorized representative must be notified to
the Company in writing and is only effective when the Company receives the notification. The

written authorization must contain main contents under the Law on Enterprises.
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6. Responsibilities of the authorized representative:

- The authorized representative shall act on behalf of the shareholder in exercising all rights
and performing all obligations of the shareholder at the General Meeting of Shareholders as in
accordance with the law. All restrictions imposed by shareholders upon the authorized
representative’s performance of the rights and obligations of being shareholders at the General
Meeting of Shareholders may not apply to any third party;

- Authorized representatives are responsible for attending every meeting of the General
Meeting of Shareholders; perform given rights and obligations in a truthful and careful manner to
protect the lawful interests of the authorizing shareholders;

- Authorized representatives are responsible to authorizing shareholders for failure to fulfill
the obligations prescribed in this Article. The authorizing shareholders are responsible to the third
party for the responsibility pertaining the rights and obligations performed by the authorized
representatives.

Chapter 111
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE COMPANY

Article 20. Administration apparatus of the Company

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. The Board of Directors.

3. General Director.

4. The Board of Supervisor.

I. The General Meeting of Shareholders

Article 21. Authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall include all Shareholders with voting rights,
and shall be the highest decision-making authority of the Company.

2. Rights and obligations of General Meeting of Shareholders:

a. To adopt the development orientation of the Company;

b. To make decisions on classes of shares and the total number of shares of each class
which may be offered for issuance;

c. To make decisions on the rate of annual dividend for each class of shares;

d. To elect, remove or discharge members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Board of Supervisor ;

e. To make decisions on the investment or sale of assets valued at 35% or more of the total
value of the Company's assets recorded in the Company’s latest financial statement;

f. To make decisions on amendments and supplements to the Company's Charter;

g. To approve annual financial statements;

h. To consider and deal with breaches by the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisor which cause damage to the Company and its shareholders;

I. To make decisions on re-organization and dissolution of the Company;

J. To make decisions on redemption of more than 10% of the total number of shares
already sold of each class of shares issued;

k. To decide the budget or the total remuneration, bonuses and other benefits of the Board
of Directors and of the Board of Supervisors;

|. To approve the internal management rules, and the operational rules of the Board of
Directors and of the Board of Supervisors;

15



m. To approve the list of independent auditing companies, and to decide on an independent
auditor to conduct inspection of activities of the company, and to remove the independent auditor
when considered necessary;

n. To accept contracts and transactions as prescribed in Clause 51.3 of this Charter;

0. Other rights and obligations as provided by law and this Charter.

Avrticle 22. Exercise of the right to attend meeting of General Meeting of Shareholders

1. Shareholders and authorized representatives of shareholders being organizations may
attend the meeting directly, authorize one or several other individuals, organizations to attend the
meeting, or attend the meeting via one of the methods stipulated in Clause 3 below. Where more
than one representative is appointed, number of shares each representative shall be specified.

2. The authorization to the other individual(s), organization(s) to attend the General
Meeting of Shareholders shall be made in writing in compliance with the civil laws and shall
specify name of the authorized person(s) or organization(s) and number of authorized shares. The
individuals and organizations authorized to attend meetings of the General Meeting of
Shareholders shall present their written authorization letter before entering the meeting room.

3. A shareholder shall be deemed to attend and vote at a meeting of the General Meeting
of Shareholders in the following cases:

a. Such shareholder attends and votes directly at the meeting;

b. Such shareholder authorizes another organization(s) or individual(s) to attend and vote
at the meeting;

c. Such shareholder attends and votes via an online conference, or by casting an electronic
vote or by other electronic forms;

d. Such shareholder sends his or her voting slip to the meeting by mail, by fax or email,;

e. Such shareholder sends his or her voting slip to the meeting by other method under
notice of invitation to the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 23. Alternation of rights

1. The alternation or cancellation of the special rights associated with a class of preference
shares shall be effective when being approve by at least 65% of the total votes of all shareholders
attending the meeting. A resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders on any item which
results in an adverse change of rights and obligations of a preference shareholder passed if it is
agreed by the number of attending preference shareholders of the same type owning 75% or more
of the total number of preference shares of such type or if it is agreed by the preference
shareholders of the same type owning 75% or more of the total number of preference shares of
such type if such resolution is passed by way of collection of written opinions.

The meeting of shareholders holding preference shares shall be valid only when there are
at least two shareholders (or their authorized representatives) holding at least one-third of the value
of issued shares. In the absence of quorum, the meeting shall be held again within thirty (30) days
thereafter, and the holders of such class of shares (irrespective of the number of persons and
number of shares) shall be deemed to be the quorum. At the above-mentioned separate meetings
of preference shares, the holders of such shares in presence or by their representatives may request
a secret ballot. Each same class of share shall have equal voting right at such meeting.

2. The procedures for conducting such separate meetings shall be the same as those set out
in Articles 26 and 28 herein.

3. Unless otherwise provided in the issuance regulation, the special rights attached to
preference shares of some or all matters relating to the distribution of profits or assets of the
Company shall not be changed when the Company issues additional shares of the same type.
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Article 24. Convention of the General Meetings of Shareholders
1. Number, time and place of the meeting:

a. The annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall take place once a year. In addition,
the General Meeting of Shareholders may be held on ad-hoc basis. The location of the General
Meeting of Shareholders shall be the place where the chairman is present and within the territory
of Vietnam.

b. An annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall be held within four (04) months from
the end of the fiscal year. If the meeting cannot be held within such period, the Company must
report the State Securities Commission in writing, in which specify reason and shall held the
annual General Meeting of Shareholders in the next subsequent 02 months.

2. Power to convene the General Meetings of Shareholders

a. The Board of Directors shall convene an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
in the following cases:

- The Board of Directors considers it necessary to do so in the interests of the Company;

- The number of remaining members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisor is
less than the minimum number of members required by law;

- Upon written request by a shareholder or a group of shareholders as stipulated in article
17.2 of this Charter for the General Meeting of Shareholders to be convened;

- The Board of Supervisor requests the convention of the General Meeting of
Shareholders;

b. The Board of Directors must convene the General Meeting of Shareholders within a
time-limit of thirty (30) days as from the number of remaining members of the Board of Directors,
the Board of Supervisor is less than the minimum number of members required by law or from
the date of receipt of the request for organizing General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in
Point a Clause 2 of this Article. If the Board of Directors fails to convene the General Meeting of
Shareholders as prescribed, the Chairman of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of
Directors shall take legal responsibility and pay compensation for any damage to the Company.

c. If the Board of Directors fails to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders as
prescribed in Point b Clause 2 of this Article, the Board of Supervisor shall, in place of the Board
of Directors, convene the General Meeting of Shareholders within thirty (30) subsequent days in
accordance with provisions under this Charter and Law on Enterprise. If the Board of Supervisor
fails to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders as prescribed, then the head of the Board of
Supervisor shall take legal responsibility and pay compensation for any damage to the Company.

d. If the Board of Supervisor fails to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders as
prescribed in Point ¢ Clause 2 of this Article, the requesting shareholder or group of shareholders
as prescribed in Point a Clause 2 of this Article shall be entitled, in place of the Board of Directors,
Board of Supervisor , to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the Law
on Enterprises.

All the expenses for convening and conducting a meeting of the General Meeting of
Shareholders according to Clause b, c, d of this Article shall be reimbursed by the Company.

Article 25. Agenda and contents of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall discuss and ratify the following
issues:

a. The Company’s annual business plan;

b. Audited annual financial statements;
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c. Report of the Board of Directors on business administration and performance of the
Board of Directors and each member thereof;

d. Report of the Board of Supervisor on the company’s business outcome, performance of
the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Office;

e. Amount of dividend payable on each class of share;
f. Total remuneration payable to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisor;

g. Self-evaluation reports on the operation of the Board of Supervisory and performance
of Supervisors;

h. Other issues falling within its competence.

2. The convenor of the General Meeting of Shareholders must prepare the program and
agenda of the meeting and documents relevant to the agenda of the meeting.

3. The shareholder or group of shareholders stipulated in Clause 2 of Article 17 of this
Charter may recommend issues to be included in the agenda of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. Such recommendation must be made in writing and must be sent to the Company at
least three (03) working days before the opening date of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The
written recommendation must include full name of each shareholder, number of shares of each
class held by such shareholder, and the contents recommended to be included in the meeting
agenda.

4. Where the convenor of a meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders refuses the
recommendation stipulated in Clause 2 of this Article, the convenor must provide a written reply
specifying the reasons no later than 02 working days prior to the date of opening of the meeting.
The convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders may rejects this recommendations in the
following cases:

a. The recommendation is not sent in accordance with clause 3 of this Article; or

b. The issue recommended does not fall within the scope of authority of the General
Meeting of Shareholders for discussion and adoption.

5. The convenor of a meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders must accept and
include the recommendations stipulated in clause 3 above into the draft program and agenda for
the meeting, except in the cases stipulated in clause 4 above; the recommendation shall be added
officially to the program and agenda for the meeting if the General Meeting of Shareholders so
agrees.

Article 26. Conditions for convening the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. A meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conduct where the number
of attending shareholders represents more than 50% of votes.

2. If the first meeting is still insufficient number of required participants based Clause 1 of
this Article, the notice of invitation to the second meeting must be sent within thirty (30) days
from the initial date of the first meeting. The reconvened General Meeting of Shareholders can
only take place where the participants, including shareholders and authorized representatives,
represent at least 33% of total voting shares.

3. If the second convened General Meeting of Shareholders could not be held due to
insufficient number of required participants based Clause 2 of this Article, the notice of invitation
to the third meeting must be sent for the third time within twenty (20) days from the intended date
of the second meeting. In this case, the third General Meeting of Shareholders shall be held
regardless of the number of attending shareholders or authorized representatives and shall be valid
and powered to make decision on all the matters that can be ratified under the first General Meeting

of Shareholders.
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Article 27. Procedures for convening the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. Registration of shareholders attending the General shareholders’ meeting: On the date
of holding the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company must carry out registration of
shareholders and such registration shall be carried out until all shareholders with the right to attend
the meeting and who are present have been registered;

2. Election of the Chairman, Secretary, and Counting Board:

a. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall act as Chairman or authorize a member of
the Board of Directors to act as chairman of all meetings which are convened by the Board of
Directors. In case the Chairman does not have authorization and is absent or is not temporarily
able to work, the remaining members of the Board of Directors shall elect one of them to act as
the Chairman of the meeting. In the case where there is no person who is able to act as Chairman,
the Head of Board of Supervisor control the Meeting to elect the chairman of the meeting and the
person with the highest number of votes shall act as the Chairman of the meeting.

b. In other cases, the person who signed the document convening the meeting of the
General Meeting of Shareholders shall arrange for the General Meeting of Shareholders to elect a
Chairman of the meeting, and the person with the highest number of votes shall act as the
Chairman of the meeting;

c. The Chairman shall appoint a person to act as secretary to prepare minutes of the General
Meeting of Shareholders;

d. The chairman shall nominate candidates for counting board election by the General
Meeting of Shareholders;

3. Adoption of agenda and contents of the meeting: The agenda and contents of the meeting
must be ratified by the General Meeting of Shareholders during the opening session. The agenda
must specify the time for each issue on the agenda.

4. The Chair may take the actions which they find necessary in order to conduct the General
Meeting of Shareholders in a proper and orderly manner, or in a way that will allow the General
Meeting of Shareholders to reflect the wishes of the majority of attendees.

5. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall discuss and vote on each issue on the agenda.
Voting shall be conducted by votes which agree, which do not agree, and abstentions.

6. Vote counting result announcement: The chairman of the meeting shall announce the
vote counting results before the closing of the meeting.

7. Any shareholder or person authorized to attend a meeting who arrives after the opening
of the meeting shall be registered and has the right to participate in voting immediately after
registration. In such case, the effectiveness of any voting which has already been conducted shall
not be affected.

8. The chairman or the convenor (until the chairman has been eleted) of a meeting of the
General Meeting of Shareholders has the following rights:

a. To require all persons attending the meeting to be subject to a security check or other
security measures;

b. To request a competent body to maintain order during the meeting; to expel from a
meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders any person who fails to comply with the right of
the Chairman to control the meeting, who disrupts order or intentionally prevents normal progress
of the meeting or who fails to comply with a request to undergo a security check;

9. The Chairman has the right to adjourn a meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders
for which sufficient attendees have registered as stipulated to another time or to change the

location of the meeting in the following cases:
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a. The location for the meeting does not have sufficient suitable seating for all of the
attendees;

b. Communication devices at the current location are not sufficient for attending
shareholders to discuss and vote;

c. There is a participant that disrupts the order and threatens to obstruct the fair and legal
progress of the meeting.

The maximum delay not exceeding three (03) working days from the initial opening date.

10. In the case where the chairman adjourns or suspends the General Meeting of
Shareholders against the Clause 9 of this Article, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall elect
another person from the attendees to replace the chairman in conducting the meeting until its
completion, and the effectiveness of voting conducted at such meeting may not be affected.

Avrticle 28. Passing of resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall ratify decisions within its competence by
voting at the meeting or by collecting written opinions.

2. The Company may use information technologies in voting, such as absentee voting via
electronic security system, internet or telephone telephone or other methods according to the
notice of invitation to the General Meeting of Shareholders to facilitate the participation of
shareholders.

3.The General Meeting of Shareholders may ratify all issues based on Article 21 of this
Chapter within its competence in the form of collecting written opinions.

4. A resolution on one of the following issues shall be ratified when it is approved by a
number of shareholders representing at least 65% of votes of all shareholders who attends and
votes at the meeting, except for the cases provided in Clause 6 and 7 of this Article:

a. Classes of shares and total amount of each class;
b. Changes of business lines;
c. Change of the Company’s organizational structure;

d. Project of investment or sale of assets of which the values are equal to or higher than
35% of the total asset value recorded in the latest audited financial statement of the Company;

e. Reorganization or dissolution of the Company;

5. Except for the case in Clause 4 of this Article, the decisions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be ratified when being approved by a number of shareholders representing more
than 50% of total votes of all shareholders who attends and and votes at the meeting, except for
the cases provided in Clause 4, 6 and 7 of this Article.

6. Voting to elect members of the Board of Directors and of the Board of Supervisor must
be implemented by the method of cumulative voting, whereby each shareholder shall have as its
total number of votes the total number of shares it owns multiplied by the number of members to
be elected to the Board of Directors or the Board of Supervisor , and each shareholder has the right
to accumulate all or part of its total votes for one or more candidates. Persons who are elected as
members of the Board of Directors or inspectors shall be determined on the basis of a descending
vote count, starting with the candidate with the highest number of votes until the number of
members required by the company Articles of Association has been elected. If there are two or
more candidates who obtain the same number of votes for being the last member of the Board of
Directors or the Board of Supervisor , such member shall be elected amongst the number of
candidates having an equal number of votes or selected in accordance with the criteria stated in
the regulations on election.
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7. Where a resolution is passed by way of collection of written opinions, a resolution of
the General Meeting of Shareholders passed when it is agreed by a number of shareholders owning
more than 50% of the total votes of all shareholders having the voting right.

8. Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be notified to Shareholders
entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders within fifteen (15) days from the date of
approval thereof. If the Company has a website, such Resolutions may be posted on the website
instead of being sent to shareholders.

Article 29. Authority and formalities for collecting written opinions of shareholders
to ratify resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Authority and formalities for collecting written opinions of shareholders to ratify
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be implemented in accordance with the
following provisions:

1. The Board of Directors is entitled to collect written opinions of shareholders to ratify
decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders at any time when it is deemed necessary for the
Company’s interest;

2. The Board of Directors shall prepare written opinion forms, a draft of the resolution of
the General Meeting of Shareholders, and other documents explaining the draft resolution, and
shall send same to all shareholders with voting rights no later than ten (10) days prior to the time-
limit within which they are required to return their written opinion forms. Preparing the list of
shareholders to send the written opinion forms shall follow to clause 1 and 2, Article 141 of Law
on Enterprise. The request for and method of sending written opinion forms and enclosed
documents shall be implemented in accordance with Article 143 of Law on Enterprise;

3. The written opinion form must contain the following principal particulars:

- Name, head office address, number and date of issuance of the Business Registration
Certificate, and place of business registration of the Company;

- Purposes of collection of written opinions;

- Name and information of the shareholder or the representative of a the shareholder; number
of shares of each class and number of votes of the shareholder;

- The issues that need voting;
- Options including affirmative, negative, and abstentions;
- Deadline for submitting the completed written opinion form to the Company;

- Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors or a person authorized
by the Chairman;

4. Shareholders may send completed written opinion form to the Company in the following
manner:

- By post. The completed written opinion form must bear the signature of the shareholder if
the shareholder is an individual, or signature of the authorized representative or legal
representative if the shareholder is an organization. Every written opinion form sent to the
Company must be put into sealed envelopes. Envelopes must not be opened before
counting;

- By fax or email. Written opinion forms sent by fax or email must be kept confidential until
the vote counting time.

Written opinion forms sent to the Company after the deadline written therein, written
opinion forms sent by post in envelopes that are opened, written opinion forms sent by fax or email
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that are revealed are all invalid. If a written opinion form is not submitted, it will be excluded from
voting;

5. The Board of Directors shall count the votes and make a vote counting record before the
Board of Supervisor or shareholders that do not hold managerial positions in the Company. The
vote counting record must contain the following information:

- Name, head office address, number and date of issuance of the Business Registration
Certificate, and place of business registration of the Company;

- Purposes and issues that need voting;

- The number of shareholders and total number of votes casted. The numbers of valid and
invalid votes, enclosed with the list of voting shareholders;

- Total number of affirmative votes, negative votes, and abstentions on each issue;
- The issues that have been ratified,

- Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or a person authorized
by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, vote counting supervisors, and vote counters.

Members of the Board of Directors, vote counters and vote counting supervisors are jointly
responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy of the vote counting record; jointly responsible for
damage caused by the decisions ratified because of untruthful, incorrect counts of votes;

6. The vote counting record and resolution shall be sent to all shareholders within fifteen
(15) days from the completion date of vote counting. If the Company has a website, the vote
counting record and resolution may be posted on such website instead of being sent to
shareholders;

7. Completed written opinion forms, the vote counting record, ratified resolutions, and
relevant documents enclosed with written opinion forms shall be kept at the Company’s
headquarter;

8.Resolutions ratified by collecting written opinions of shareholders are as valuable as
those ratified at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Avrticle 30. Effect of resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. A Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders is effective from the day on which
it is ratified or on the effective date written thereon.

2. Any resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders which is ratified with 100% of
voting shares shall be legitimate and effective even if the procedures for ratifying such Resolution
are not conformable with Law on Enterprise and this Charter.

3. In case a shareholder or group of shareholders request to annul a Resolution of the
General Meeting of Shareholders based on Article 151 of Law on Enterprise, such resolution is
still effective until a dissenting decision is made by the court or arbitral tribunal, except for the
case in which temporary emergency measures are taken under a decision of a competent authority.

Article 31. Minutes of General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders must be recorded in writing, audio recordings, or
other electronic means of recordings with the principal contents as prescribed by the Law on
Enterprises. The meeting minutes must be made in Vietnamese language and foreign languages if
necessary and shall have equal legal effectiveness. In case of any discrepancy between the
Vietnamese version and foreign language version, the Vietnamese version shall prevail.

2. The minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be completed and ratified
before the end of the meeting.
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3. The chairman and secretary or any other person signing the minutes of meeting are
jointly responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the minutes.

4. Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be sent to all shareholders within
fifteen (15) days from the date of the conclusion of such meetings. The minutes of vote-counting
may be posted on the Company’s website instead of being sent to shareholders. The minutes of
the General Meeting of Shareholders, list of registered shareholders, ratified resolutions, records
containing signatures of attended shareholders and authorizations and relevant documents
enclosed with the invitations must be kept at the Company’s headquarter.

Article 32. Request for annulment of resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

Within ninety (90) days from the day on which the resolution or minutes or the vote
counting record is received, the shareholder or group of shareholders mentioned in Clause 2
Article 17 of this Chapter may request a court or arbitral tribunal to consider annulling the
Resolution or part of the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders in the following cases:

1. Order and procedures for convening and issuing a resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders seriously breached the Law on Enterprises and the Company’s Charter except for
the case prescribed in Clause 2 of Article 30 herein.

2. The content of the resolution breach the Law or the Company's Charter.

Where the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders is cancelled under the
decision of a court or arbitrator, the convenor of the meeting of the General Meeting of
Shareholders the resolution of which is cancelled may consider and convene a second meeting of
the General Meeting of Shareholders within 30 days in accordance with sequence and procedures
prescribed in the Law on Enterprises and this Charter.

Il. The Board of Directors
Article 33. Rights and obligations of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors is a body with full power to exercise all the rights on behalf of
the Company, except the powers of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. The rights and obligations of the Board of Directors:

a. To decide on the medium-term development strategies and plans, the annual business
plan of the Company;

b. To propose classes of shares to be issued and the total number of issued shares for each
class;

c. To make decisions on offering unsold shares within the number of shares of each class
which may be offered for sale; to make decisions on raising additional funds in other forms;

d. To decide the offered price of bonds, shares;

e. To make decisions on repurchase of no more than 10% of the total number of shares of
each class already issued within a period of 12 months;

f. To make decisions on investment plans and investment projects within its authority and
limits stipulated in the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities and the Charter of the Company;

g. To make decisions on solutions for market expansion, on marketing and technology;

h. To approve the contracts on the purchase, sale, loan, loan grant and other contracts,
transactions with their values equal or higher than 35% of the total value of assets stated in the
latest financial statement of the Company, except contracts and transactions within the decision-
making authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in sub-clause e, Clause 2
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of Article 21 of this Charter and contracts, transactions between the Company and related persons
according to the regulations of the Law on Enterprises and this Charter;

i. To appoint, dismiss the Board of Directors’ Chairman, appoint, dismiss, sign and
terminate the contract with the General Director and other Management Personnel of the
Company. to make decisions on salaries remuneration, bonuses and other benefits of such
executives; to appoint an authorized representative to exercise ownership rights of shares or of
capital contributed to other companies, and to make decisions on the level of remuneration and
other benefits of authorized representatives;

j. To supervise and direct the General Director and managers of the Company in
conducting the daily business operation;

k. To make decisions on the organizational structure and internal management rules, to
make decisions on the establishment of subsidiary companies, the establishment of branches, and
representative offices and on capital contribution to or purchase of shares in other enterprises
within the limits stipulated by the law and the Charter of the Company;

I. To approve the agenda and contents of documents for meetings of the General Meeting
of Shareholders; to convene meetings of the General Meeting of Shareholders or to obtain written
opinions in order for the General Meeting of Shareholders to pass resolutions;

m. To submit annual financial statements of the Company the General Meeting of
Shareholders;

n. To recommend the dividend rates to be paid, to make decisions on the time-limit and
procedures for payment of dividends or for dealing with losses incurred in the business operation;

0. To propose the re-organization, dissolution or request of the Company;

p. To establish a standard procedure for convening a meeting, voting and deciding a
resolution at the meeting of the Board of Directors for obtaining the approval of the General
Meeting of Shareholders; to set up the process and procedure for the nomination, candidacy,
election, dismissal and removal of the Board of Directors’ member; to establish the rules on the
process, procedure for the selection, appointment, dismissal of the Company’s manager and the
procedure 26 for coordinating the operations between the Board of Directors with the Board of
Supervisor and the General Director; to build up the mechanism for assessing the performance,
appraising the merit, rewarding and imposing the penalty towards the members of the Board of
Directors, the General Director and managers of the Company;

g. To establish the divisions or appoint a person in charge of internal control and risk
management in order to prescribe the policy on the strategic management of risks during the
operation of the Company and to check for assessing the suitability, efficiency of the risk
management system already established in the Company;

r. To implement the prevention and settlement of the conflicts which may occur between
the shareholders and the Company. The Board of Directors may appoint employees in order to
implement the necessary systems or establish a specialized division in charge of handling the
conflicts within the Company or serving such purpose;

s. To make decisions on the investment or sale of assets valued from higher 10% to under
35% of the total value of the Company's assets recorded in the Company's latest financial
statement;

t. Other rights and obligations in accordance with Law on Enterprise and this Charter.

3. The Board of Directors shall approve its decision by voting at the meeting, collecting
written opinions. Each member of the Board of Directors shall have one (01) vote.
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4. When implementing its functions, rights and obligations, the Board of Directors must
comply with the law, the Company’s Charter and decisions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. If any resolution approved by the Board of Directors is contrary to the provisions
of the law, resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders or the Company’s Charter and
causes damages to the Company, then the members who agreed to pass such resolution shall be
jointly and personally liable for it and they must compensate the Company for such damages; any
member who opposed the ratification of the above mentioned resolution shall be exempted from
any responsibility. In such case, a shareholder of the company has the right to request a court to
suspend implementation of or to rescind the above-mentioned resolution or decision.

5. During the implementation of their duties, members of the Board of Directors shall have
the following rights and responsibilities:

a. Rights of members of the Board of Directors:
- Right to be provided with information:

+ Members of the Board of Directors shall be entitled to request the General Director and
the manager of the Company to provide information, documents on the financial situation,
business operation of the Company and other units in the Company;

+ The manager of the Company is required to provide timely, fully and accurately the
information, documents at the request of any member of the Board of Directors;

+ Order, procedure to request and supply information: the members of the Board of
Directors send a written request for supplying information to General Director and the manager of
the Company. The document specifying the information to be provided, the time limit for the
supply. Written requests for information should be sent simultaneously to other members of the
Board of Supervisors for monitoring and supervision.

- Right to obtain the remuneration and other benefits:

+ The Company is entitled to pay remuneration and bonus to members of the Board of
Directors based on the business results and efficiency;

+ The remuneration, salaries and other benefits of members of the Board of Directors shall
be paid in accordance with the following provisions: Remuneration for work shall be calculated
on the basis of the number of working days necessary to fulfil the duties of the members of the
Board of Directors and the daily rate of remuneration. The Board of Directors shall estimate a rate
of remuneration for each member on the principle of unanimous agreement or shall direct equal
sharing in the case of disagreement. The total amount of remuneration and bonus for the Board of
Directors shall be decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders at the annual meeting;

+ Members of the Board of Directors shall be entitled to get paid for all the expenses of
traveling, meal, accommodation and other reasonable expenditures that they had to spend during
the execution of their duties as members of the Board of Directors;

+ The remuneration of members of the Board of Directors shall be included in the business
expenses of the Company in accordance with the laws on corporate income tax and shall be
presented as a separate item in the annual financial statements of the Company and shall be
reported to the General Meeting of Shareholders at its annual meeting.

b. Obligations of a member of the Board of Directors:

- To exercise his or her delegated powers and perform his or her delegated duties strictly
in accordance with the law;

- To exercise transparency of interests and persons involved according to Law on
Enterprise;

- To perform other obligations in accordance with the law and the Charter of the Company.
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Article 34. Number, composition and term of the Board of Directors’ members
1. Number and composition of members of the Board of Directors

The number of members of the Board of Directors shall have three (03) members
2. Term of members of the Board of Directors

a. The term of the members of the Board of Directors shall be three (03) years and members
of the Board of Directors may be re-elected for unlimited number of terms.

b. In case all the members of the Board of Directors have their terms ended but the General
Meeting of Shareholders has not yet voted new members, the above mentioned members shall
remain to be members of the Board of Directors until the new members shall be elected for
replacement and for taking over the works.

c. The term of an additional member who is elected or of a member who is elected to
replace a member who was disqualified, removed or discharged during a term of office shall be
the residual period of the term of the Board of Directors.

Article 35. Qualifications, conditions to be a member of the Board of Directors
1. Qualifications and conditions for being a member of the Board of Directors:

a. Not fall into the category of entities which are not entitled to establish and manage
enterprises in Vietnam as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises;

b. Having professional level, experiences in business management or experiences in the
securities, finance and banking sectors;

c. Not being the General Director, member of the Board of Directors, member of the Board
of Members of another securities company;

2. The qualifications and conditions stipulated in this Article shall be applied at the same
time to the members of the Board of Directors who are elected additionally and/or for replacement.

Article 36. Chairman of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors shall select among its members and vote to obtain its Chairman.
2. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall have the following rights and duties:

a. To prepare working plans and programs of the Board of Directors;

b. To prepare the agenda, contents and documents serving the meeting, convene the
meetings of the Board of Directors;

C. To organize the implimentation of the Board of Directors’ resolution;

d. To supervise the organization the implementation of the Board of Directors’ resolutions;
e. To preside the General Meeting of Shareholders and meetings of the Board of Directors;
f. Other rights and obligations in accordance with the Law on Enterprises and this Charter.

3. Where the Chairman of the Board of Directors is absent or cannot carry out his/her
duties, another member shall be authorized by the Chairman to exercise the rights and fulfill the
obligations of the Chairman of Board of Directors. Where no person is authorized or the chairman
of the Board of Directors dies, goes missing, is temporarily detained in prison, serves a prison
sentence, is subject to administrative measures in a compulsory drug rehabilitation establishment
or compulsory educational establishment, absconds from his or her place of residence, has his or
her capacity for civil acts restricted or lost, has cognitive difficulties or difficulties with behavioral
control, or is prohibited by a court from assuming a certain position or practicing or doing certain
work, then the other members of, the Board of Directors can elect another person among the
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members to carry out the duty of the Chairman based on the principle of majority until there is a
new decision of the Board of Directors.

4. Where necessary, the Board of Directors may appoint a secretary to the company to help
the Board of Directors and its Chairman fulfilling the obligations under their authorities in
conformity with the law. The Company Secretary shall have the following rights and obligations
as prescribed by the Article 46 of this Charter.

5. The Chairman of the Board of Directors may be removed or dismissed according to the
decision of the Board of Directors.

Article 37. Meetings of the Board of Directors and minutes of meetings

1. The Board of Directors may hold periodical or extraordinary meetings. Periodical
meetings of the Board of Directors shall be convened by the Chairman at any time necessary,
however, at least once (01) every quarter.

2. The Chairman of the Board of Directors will be elected at the first meeting of the Board
of Directors within seven (07) working days counted from the date of completion of the election
of such Board of Directors. Such meeting shall be convened by the member who obtains the
highest number of votes or the highest percentage of votes. If more than one member have equal
and highest numbers or percentage of votes, the voting members shall elect by majority vote one
(01) of them to convene the meeting of the Board of Directors.

3. The Chairman of the Board of Directors must convene an extraordinary meeting of the
Board of Directors in following cases:

a. Upon request of The Board of Supervisor;
b. Upon request of The General Director or at least five (05) other managers;
c. Upon request of at least two (02) members of the Board of Directors;

The request of the meeting must be in writing, clearly states the objectives, issues to be
discussed and decided under the competence of the Board of Directors.

4. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall convene the meeting of the Board of
Directors within seven (07) working days as of the receiving date of the request as stipulated in
Clause 3 of this Article. If the Chairman of the Board of Directors fails to do so, he/she shall be
responsible for damages occurred to the Company and the requesters shall be entitled to convene
the meeting of the Board of Directors by themselves

5. The Chairman of the Board of Directors or the person convening the meeting of the
Board of Directors shall send the notice of and invitation to the meeting, at the latest three (03)
days prior to the meeting date, to the members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board
of Supervisor and General Director. The invitation must define specifically the time and venue of
the meeting, agenda, issues to be discussed and decision with enclosed documents used at the
meeting and the votes of members that will not attend the meeting. Invitations may be sent by
method based on Law on Enterprise.

6. Supervisors shall be entitled to attend and discuss in the meetings of the Board of
Directors but they have no voting right.

7. The meeting of the Board of Directors according to the first invitation notice shall be
conducted if it is attended by three fourths (3/4) of the total number of members. Where the
meeting convened for the first time is not conducted because of the number of attendants is less
than the quorum, it will be convened for the second time within seven (07) days as of the intended
date of the first meeting. In this case, the meeting shall be conducted if attended by half of the total
members of the Board of Directors.
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8. Members of the Board of directors are deemed to have been present and voted in the
meeting in these circumstances:

a. They appeared and voted directly in the meeting;

b. They authorised to other person to attend and vote at the meeting based on Clause 10 of
this Article.

c. They participated and voted in an online meeting by casting an electronic vote or by
other electronic forms;

d. They sent their voting cards to the conclave by mail, fax or email. Voting cards mailed
to the conclave must be put in sealed envelopes and delivered to the Chairman of the Board of
directors no later than one hour prior to the start of the conclave. VVoting cards shall only be taken
out of envelopes in the presence of all attendees..

9. The Board of Directors shall pass the resolutions and issue the decisions by complying
with the positive votes of the majority of the members present at the meeting. In case the numbers
of positive and negative votes are equal, the vote of the Chairperson shall be the final.

10. Members must attend all meetings of the Board of Directors. A member can authorise
another attendee if approved by most of the members of the Board of Directors.

11. Meetings of the Board of Directors must be noted in the minutes of the meeting and
can be recorded, saved and kept under any other electronic forms at the head office of the
Company. The minutes of the meeting shall be made in Vietnamese or can be additionally made
in foreign language with full and main contents as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises. Minutes
in Vietnamese and foreign language shall have the same legal validity. For any discrepancy in the
contents of the minutes of the meeting, the contents in the Vietnamese minutes of the meeting
shall prevail. The minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors must be signed by the
Chairperson and the secretary in charge of making the minutes of the meeting. The Chairperson
and secretary in charge of making the minutes and any persons signing the minutes shall be liable
for the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents in the Board of Directors’ minutes of the meeting.

Article 38. Removing, dismissing and supplementing members of the Board of
Directors

1. A member of the Board of Directors shall be discharged by the General Meeting of
Shareholders in the following cases:

a. Any member of the Board of Directors who no longer satisfies the qualifications and
conditions as prescribed in Article 35 of this Charter;

c. Upon written notice of resignation;

2. A member of the Board of Directors shall be removed by the General Meeting of
Shareholders if such member did not participate in any activity of the Board of Directors for a
consecutive period of six (06) months, except for the event of Force majeure;

if such member did not participate in activities of the Board of Directors for six consecutive
months, except for cases of force majeure.

3. When considered necessary, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall decide to replace
any member of the Board of Directors; or discharge or remove any member of the Board of
Directors in the cases other than those stipulated in clauses 1 and 2 of this article..

4. The Board of Directors shall convene the General Meeting of Shareholders to elect
additional members of the Board of Directors in the following cases: The number of members of
the Board of Directors decreases by more than one third (1/3) of the number stated by the Charter
of the Company. In this case, the Board of Directors shall convene a General Meeting of
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Shareholders within a period of not more than sixty (60) days from the day in which the number
of members of the Board of Directors decreased by more than one third;

For other cases, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall vote new member for replacing
the one being dismissed, removed in the most recent meeting.

Article 39. Internal Audit and Risk Control Divisions of the Board of Directors

1. The Internal Audit Division shall implement its function based on the principle of
independence, truthfulness, objectiveness and confidentiality. The specific functions and duties of
the Internal Audit Division shall be as follows:

a. To assess independently the suitability and compliance of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, and the Board of Directors with the legal policies, Charter of the company and
resolutions;

b. To inspect, review and assess the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the internal
control system under the General Director in order to render this system perfectly;

c. To assess the compliance of the business operation with the internal policies and
procedures;

d. To advise the establishment of internal policies and procedures;

e. To assess the compliance with the laws, the control of the measures to ensure the safety
of the Company’s assets;

f. To assess the internal audit through the financial information and course of the business
operations;

g. To assess the process for determining, evaluating and managing the business risks;
h. To assess the efficiency of the operations;

i. To assess the compliance with the contractual commitments;

j. To implement the control of the information technology system;

k. To investigate the internal violations in the Company;

I. To implement the internal audit of the Company and its subsidiaries;

2. To Function and operational principle of the Risk Control Division:

a. To prescribe the policy, strategy for risk control; criteria for evaluating the risks; overall
risk level of the Company and of each department of the Company;

b. To assess independently the suitability and compliance with the policies, processes of
risk control established in the Company;

c. To inspect, review and assess the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the internal
risk control system under the General Director in order to render this system perfect;

3. Requirement for the personnel of the Internal Audit Division:

a. A personnel of the division must not be penalized in the past by a fine or higher level of
penalty for any act of violation in the sectors of securities, banking, insurance within five (05)
most recent years to the year of his/her appointment to the division;

b. The Head of the Internal Audit Division must be a qualified person having the
professional level in the fields of law, accounting, auditing, enough experiences, reputation,
authority to implement efficiently the assigned duty;
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c. A personnel of the Division must not be related to the heads of professional departments,
person practicing the business of the Company, General Director, Deputy General Director (if
any), Branch Director (if any) in the Company;

d. A personnel of the division must have the Certificate of basic matters related to the
securities and securities market and Certificate of Law Study on the securities and securities
market or Certificate of Practicing the securities business;

e. Staff of the division may not concurrently hold other positions in the Company.
I11. General Director
Article 41. General Director; rights and obligations of General Director

1. The General Director hired and/or appointed by the Board of Directors. The term of the
General Director shall not exceed five (05) years; the General Director may be re-appointed for
an unlimited number of terms.

2. Rights and obligations of the General Director

The General Director shall manage the day-to-day business operations of the Company;
shall be subject to supervision by the Board of Directors and shall be responsible to the Board of
Directors and before the law for the performance of his or her delegated duties. The specific duties
and powers of the General Director shall be comprised of deciding, approving, signing all
agreements, contracts, documents and other documents related to the following matters:

a. Issues relating to the day-to-day business operations of the Company and other issues
which are not falling within the authority of the Board of Directors stated in Clause 2 Article 33
of the Charter and the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders stated in Clause 2 Article
21 of the Charter;

b. Organization of the implementation of resolutions of the Board of Directors;

c. Organization of the implementation of business plans and investment plans of the
Company;

d. Making of recommendations on the organizational structure or issue regulations on
internal management of the Company;

e. Appointment, removal and dismissal of managerial positions in the Company, except
for those subject to the approval of the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of
Shareholders;

f. Making of recommendations on plans for using profit or dealing with business losses;
g. Employee recruitment;

h. Decisions on wages and other benefits to the employees of the Company, including
management positions under the appointment of the General Director;

I. The purchase, sale, borrowing and lending of and other contracts and transactions with
respect to and/or in relation to, including but not limited to assets for daily business operations of
the Company, securities, valuable papers, with the value of under 35% of the total value of assets
recorded in the latest financial statement of the Company, unless another percentage or value is
specified in the company charter, and contracts and transactions falling within the deciding
competence of the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of Shareholders according to this
Charter, and contracts and transactions between the Company and related persons according to the
regulations of the Law on Enterprises and this Charter.

J. The investment or sale of assets valued at or under 10% of the total value of the
Company's assets recorded in the Company's latest financial statement;
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k. Other powers and obligations in accordance with provisions of law, this Charter and
resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors.

3. The General Director shall manage the day-to-day business operations of the Company
in accordance with the law, the Charter of Company, the labor contract signed with Company and
resolutions of Board of Director. Where the General Director breaches this regulation causing
damage to the Company, the General Director must be accountable to the law and responsibility
for compensating the Company for such damage.

4. Obligations and interests of members of General Director:
a. Interests of members of General Director:

- General Director shall be entitled to salary based on the business results and efficiency.
The salary and other interests of General Director shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

- The remuneration and salary of members of the General Director shall be included in the
business expenses of the Company in accordance with the law and shall be presented as a separate
item in the annual financial statements of the Company and shall be reported to the General
Meeting of Shareholders at its annual meeting.

b. Obligations of General Director:
- To exercise obligations of manager of the Company in accordance with the law;

- To publicize benefits and related persons in accordance with the provision of Article 164
of Law on Enterprises;

- Other obligations in accordance with the Law and the Charter of the Company.
Article 41. Standards and conditions of General Director
The General Director must satisfy the following criteria:

1. Not be currently subject to prosecution for criminal liability or serving a prison sentence
or be banned from securities practice in accordance with law;

2. Have at least 2 years' working experience in a professional section of any organization
in the financial, securities, banking or insurance sector or in the financial, accounting or investment
section of another enterprise;

3. Have a financial analysis practising certificate or fund management practising
certificate;

4. Not have been penalized for any administrative breach in the securities and securities
market sector in the 6 month period prior to being chosen as the General Director.

5. Not being concurrently a member of Board of Directors, Board of Members of another
securities company; not working concurrently to other enterprises.

Article 42. Removing and dismissing of General Director
The General Director shall be removed or dismissed in the following cases:

1. Failure to satisfy the criteria and conditions for being the General Director stipulated in
Avrticle 41 of this Charter.

2. Upon written notice of resignation.
3. Upon resolution of the Board of Directors.

Article 43. Internal Control Unit and Risk Management Unit under the direction of
General Director
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1. The Internal Control Unit is responsible for controlling the compliance within the
Company regarding the following aspects:

a. Supervise the compliance with the provisions of Laws, the Company's Charter,
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, resolutions of the Board of Directors, rules,
operational processes and risk management procedures of the Company, of relevant units and
individuals within the Company operating in securities sector;

b. Supervise the implementation on internal regulations, the potential conflicts of interest
within the Company, particularly in respect of the business activities of the Company and
individual transactions of the Company's employees; supervise the enforcement of obligations of
managers and employees in the Company, enforcement of obligations of partners regarding the
authorized activities;

c. Review the contents of and supervise the implementation of the rules of professional
conduct;

d. Supervise the compliance with regulations of financial safety;

e. Separate the clients' assets;

f. Protect and preserve clients' assets;

g. Control the compliance with laws on anti-money laundering;

h. Other tasks as assigned by the General Director.

2. Criteria and conditions for personnel of the Internal Control Unit:
a. There must be at least 01 compliance officer in the Company

b. The Head of Internal Control Unit must have qualifications in law, accounting, audit;
have sufficient experience, prestige and competence to effectively execute assigned tasks;

c. Not being related person to the heads of professional departments, task executors, the
General Director, Deputy General Directors (if any), Branch Directors (if any) in the Company;

d. Have practicing certificate in securities or a certification in "Fundamental issues of
securities and securities market"; certification in "Laws on securities and securities market";

e. Not concurrently take another job in the Company;

3. Duties of the risk management system:

a. Identify the policies and the level of risk tolerance of the Company;

b. Identify risks of the Company;

c. Measure risks;

d. Supervise, prevent, detect and handling risks.

IVV. Board of Supervisor

Article 44. Members, term and composition of the Board of Supervisor
1. The Company’s Board of Supervisor consists of 03 members.

2. The term of office of a member of Board of Supervisor is 03 years without term limit.
If term of office of all Supervisors expires at the same time and Supervisors of the new term are
not elected, the retiring Supervisors shall keep performing their rights and obligations until
Supervisors of a new term are elected and take office.

3. Members of the Board of Supervisor are elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders
on the principle of cumulative voting. Supervisors shall elect one of them as the Chairman of the
Board of Supervisor under the majority rule.
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4. More than half of the inspectors of the Board of Supervisors must reside permanently in
Vietnam. The head of the Inspection Committee must have a university or higher graduation
degree in one of the following specialties: economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, business
management or in a specialized faculty relating to the business activities of the Company.Article

Article 45. Rights and obligations of the Board of Supervisor

1. Rights of the Board of Supervisor :

a. Supervise the Board of Directors, Director and the General Director in managing the
company;

b. Inspect the rationality, legitimacy, truthfulness, and prudence in the management and
business operations; systematicness, consistency and standardization of accounting, statistics and
financial reporting;

c. Inspect the sufficiency, legitimacy, and truthfulness of business outcome reports, annual
and biannual financial statements of the Company, assessment report of the management of the
Board of Directors, and submit the inspection report at the annual general meeting;

d. Review, check, assess the effect and effectiveness of the internal control system, internal
audit system, risk management and early warning system of the company;

e. Examine accounting books, accounting records and other documents of the Company;
managerial and administrative works of the Company where necessary or under the Resolutions
39 of the General Meeting of Shareholders or at the request of the shareholder or group of
shareholders prescribed in Article 17 of this Charter;

f. If there is a request from individual shareholders or a group of shareholders provided for
in Article 17 of this Charter, the Board of Supervisor shall investigate within seven (07) working
days from the date of receipt thereof. Within fifteen (15) days from the end of the inspection, the
Board of Supervisor shall report the issues to the Board of Directors and the shareholder or group
of shareholders who made the request. The inspection mentioned in this Clause must not obstruct
the normal operation of the Board of Directors and must not interrupt the company’s business
administration;

g. Propose changes and improvements to the organizational structure, management,
supervision, and operation of the Company to the Board of Directors or the General Meeting of
Shareholders;

h. Upon detection of a member of the Board of Directors, or the General Director breaching
the obligations of a manager of the Company as stipulated in the Law on Enterprises or this
Charter, the Board of Supervisor shall give immediate written notice to the Board of Directors and
request the person to cease the breach and take measures to remedy any consequences;

i. Upon detection of a member of the Board of Directors or General Director breaching the
laws or this Charter to the detriment of the interests of the Company, shareholders or customers,
the Board of Supervisor has the responsibility to request the breaching person to explain within a
certain period or request to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders to resolve. The Board
of Supervisor must inform breaches of the laws in writing to the State Securities Commission
within seven (07) working days from the date of detection;

j. Develop supervision process and procedures to be approved in the General Meeting of
Shareholders;

k. Conduct other rights and duties stipulated in the Law on Enterprises, the Company’s
Charter and Resolution of the General meeting of Shareholders;

2. During their course of action, the Board of Supervisor have the following rights and
duties:
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a. Rights of the Board of Supervisor :

- Employ independent consultants and internal audit department of the Company to
perform given duties;

- Attend and discuss at meetings of the Board of Directors, General Meetings of
Shareholders, and other meetings of the Company;

- Seek opinions of the Board of Directors before submitting reports, conclusions, and
proposals to the General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Be entitled to full access to information:

+ Invitations, absentee ballots, and enclosed documents shall be sent to the Board of
Supervisor at the same time and in the same manner as Members of the Board of Directors;

+ Resolutions and minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings of
Shareholders shall be sent to the Board of Supervisor at the same time and in the same manner as
shareholders and Members of the Board of Directors;

+ Reports of the General Director submitted to the Board of Directors and other documents
issued by the Company shall be sent to the Board of Supervisor at the same time and in the same
manner as Members of the Board of Director;

+ Supervisors are entitled to access documents of the company which are kept at the
headquarter, branches, and other locations; entitled to enter working places of managers and
employees of the Company during working hours;

+ The Board of Directors, members of the Board of Directors, General Director, and other
managers must provide sufficient, accurate, and timely information, documents about the
management of the company at the request of members of the Supervisors or the Board of
Supervisor .

- Members of the Board of Supervisor shall receive remuneration and other benefits under
decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall
decide on the total remuneration and annual operating budget of the Board of Supervisor .
Members of the Board of Supervisor shall be reimbursed for expenses for meals, accommodation,
travel and for use of independent consultancy services and expenses arising at reasonable rates.
The total amount of such remuneration and expenses shall not exceed the total annual operating
budget of the Board of Supervisor approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, except
where otherwise decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders. Remuneration and operating
costs of the Board of Supervisor shall be included in business expenses of the Company in
accordance with the laws on corporate income tax and other relevant laws, and must be presented
in a separate item in the annual financial statements of the Company.

b. Duties of the Board of Supervisor:

- Comply with the laws, the Company’s Charter, decisions of the Shareholders' Meeting
and professional ethics in exercising assigned rights and tasks;

- Perform the given rights and obligations with honesty, prudence and in the best interest
of the Company;

- Act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders; do not use information,
industry secrets, business opportunities or assets of the Company or misuse one’s position, power,
for self-seeking purposes or serving the interest of other entities;

- Other obligations as provided for by laws and this Charter.

3. The Supervisor who violates regulations in Paragraph b, Clause 2 of this Article and
thus causes damage to the company or other persons shall take personal responsibility or pay
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compensation for such damage. All incomes and other benefits of such Supervisor shall be
returned to the Company.

4. If a Supervisor is found committing violations while exercising his/her given rights and
obligations, the finding Supervisor shall send a written notification to the Board of Supervisor ,
requesting the violator to stop the violations and take remedial measures.

Article 46. Operations and meetings of the Board of Supervisor

1. The Board of Supervisor must issue regulations on operations, process, procedures and
meetings of the Board of Supervisor to be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. The Board of Supervisor shall meet at least two (02) times per year.

3. The Board of Supervisor meeting shall take place if at least two thirds (2/3) of the
members attend the meeting.

Article 47. Standards and conditions of Supervisors

1. Not fall into the category of entities which are not entitled to establish and manage
enterprises in Vietnam as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises.

2. Not hold any managerial position in the Company, and is not required to be a shareholder
or an employee of the company, unless otherwise stipulated in the charter of the company.

3. Not a spouse, natural father, adoptive father, natural mother, adoptive mother, father-in-
law, mother-in-law, child, adopted child, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, sibling, brother-in-law and
sister-in-law, and siblings of the spouse of any member of the Board of Directors, General
Director, or any other manager.

4. Having been trained in one of the following specialties: economics, finance, accounting,
auditing, law, business management or in a specialized faculty appropriate for the business
activities of the Company;

5. The Chairman of the Board of Supervisor may not concurrently be a member of the
Board of Supervisor or manager of another securities company.

Article 48. Dismissal of members of Supervisor Board

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall remove a member of the Board of Supervisor
in the following cases:

a. No longer satisfies the standards and conditions to be a Supervisor prescribed in Article
47 of this Charter;

c. written resignation notice which is approved;

2. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall dismiss a members of the Board of
Supervisor in the following cases:

a. Fails to fulfill the given tasks or duties;

b. Fails to perform his/her rights and obligations for six (06) consecutive months, except
for force majeure events;

c. Commit serious or repeated violations of Supervisor’s obligations prescribed by the Law
on Enterprises and this Charter;

d. Other cases pursuant to a Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Chapter IV
HANDLING OF RELATIONSHIP WITH RELATED PARTIES
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Article 49. Potential disputes

1. Cases shall be deem as a dispute between the Company and the relevant partners when
disputes or complaints arise between:

a. The shareholders and the Company;

b. C6 Shareholders and the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
members of the Board of Management, Board of Supervisor , members of the Board of Supervisor
, General Director or manager of the Company;

c. Clients or other relevant partners of the Company.

2. Causes of dispute: Disputes related to the operation of the Company, the rights of the
shareholders defined in the Charter or any rights and obligations prescribed by the Law on
Enterprises, other laws or administrative regulations.

Article 50. Dispute resolution

1. Negotiation and reconciliation: Involved parties will try to resolve the dispute through
negotiation and reconciliation. The Chairman of the Board of Directors or the person authorized
will take the lead to resolve disputes, unless the dispute is related to the Board of Directors or the
Chairman of the Board of Directors. In case of disputes are related to the Board of Directors and
the Chairman of the Board, any party may request to appoint an independent expert to act as an
arbitrator for the dispute resolution process.

2. Refer the disputes to arbitration tribunal or court: In case conciliation decision fails to
be reached within six (06) weeks from the start of the conciliation process or if the decision of the
mediator is not accepted by the parties, either party may refer the dispute to an arbitration tribunal
or court of competent jurisdiction.

3. Costs of negotiation, mediation and arbitration or court costs:
a. The parties will bear its costs related to the procedure of negotiation and reconciliation;

b. Who will bear cost of the arbitration and court shall be decided by the Arbitration and
Court in accordance with law.

Article 51. Transactions subject to approval

1. Contracts and transactions between the Company and the following entities must be
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders or by the Board of Directors:

- A shareholder or authorized representative of a shareholder which is an organization
holding more than ten (10) percent of the ordinary shares of the Company and its related persons;

- A member of the Board of Directors, and of the General Director; Related persons of a
member of the Board of Directors and of a member of the Board of Management;

- Enterprises to be declared by members of the Board of Management, inspectors, the
General Director and other managers of the Company as stipulated in Law on Enterprise.;

2. Any contract and transaction stipulated in Clause 1 of this Article valued at less than
thirty-five (35) per cent of the total value of assets recorded in the most recent financial statement
of the Company shall be approved by the Board of Directors. In this case, the legal representative
shall send to members of the Board of Directors and at the same time, display at the head office
and branches of the Company the draft contract or give notice of the main contents of the
transaction to members of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall make a decision
on approval of the contract or transaction within fifteen (15) days from the date of display; and
any member of Board of Directors with related interests relating to the parties to the contract or
transaction shall not have the right to vote;
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3. The following Contracts and transactions shall be approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders:

a. Contracts and transactions other than those stipulated in clause 2 of this Article;

b. Contracts for and transactions of borrowing, lending or sale of assets valued at more
than ten (10) percent of the total value of assets of the Company stated in the most recent financial
statements between the Company and shareholders owning fifty one (51) or more per cent of the
total number of voting shares or their related persons.

In this case, the legal representative shall give notice to Board of Director and Board of
Supervisor about objects related to such contract, transaction; and at the same time, display the
draft contract or give notice of the main contents of the transaction. The Board of Directors shall
submit the draft contract or explain the main contents of the transaction at the General Meeting of
Shareholders or collect written opinions from shareholders. In this case, shareholders with related
interests relating to the parties to the contract or transaction shall not have the right to vote.
Contracts and transactions shall be approved in accordance with Clause 2 and 3 of Article 28 of
this Charter;

4. Contracts and transactions, which were signed not in accordance with the provisions of
this Article, shall be void pursuant to a decision of a court and handled according to the laws.
Individuals signing contracts shareholders, members of the Board of Directors or the involved
General Director shall make restitution for damage caused and return to the Company their
earnings from such contracts or transactions.

5. The company must publicize relevant contracts and transactions in accordance with
relevant laws.

Article 52. Reporting and information disclosure
1. Disclosure obligations

a. The Company must follow the information disclosure regime, regular and ad hoc
reporting in accordance with the law on securities and securities market or at the request of the
competent State agency in an adequate and timely manner. The Company shall be liable for the
accuracy and truthfulness of the information and data disclosed or reported,;

b. The disclosure is made in a maner to ensure that shareholders and the public investors
can have equal access to information at the same time. The language used in the disclosure of
information should be clear and easy to understand to avoid confusion to shareholders and the
public investors.

2. Contents to be disclosed:
a. The Company shall disclose information concerning its performance, including:

- Disclose financial statements, reports on prudential financial ratios and other reports on
a regular basis in accordance with laws;

- Disclose unusual information within 24 hours since occurrence or detection of the event
as prescribed by law;

- Disclose information upon request of the competent authorities.

b. The Company must disclose information about the corporate governance in annual
Shareholders’ Meetings and annual financial statements.

3. T6 Implementation of information disclosure: The Company shall develop and issue
regulations on information disclosure in alignment with the Law on Securities and guiding
documents and appoint at least one officer in charge of information disclosure who meets the
following requirements:
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a. Possess knowledge of accounting, finance and adequate IT skills;
b. Publicize name, office phone number for shareholders to easily contact;

c. Have enough time to perform their functions, especially in communicating with
shareholders, receiving their feedback and disclose information, respond to feedback and other
corporate governance issues on a regular basis as prescribed by laws.

4. Information discloser: The disclosure must be done by legal representatives of the
Company or a person authorized to disclose information. The Company’s legal representative shall
be liable for the content of information disclosed.

Chapter V
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND ACCOUNTING

Article 53. Fiscal year

1. The fiscal year of the Company commences on the 1st January and ends on the 31st
December of every calendar year.

2. The first fiscal year of the Company commences on the establishment date and ends on
the 31st December of that year. Where the first fiscal year of the Company is less than four (04)
months, the financial statement for such year shall be audited together with the financial statements
for the next fiscal year.

Article 54. Accounting System

1. The Company uses the Vietnam Accounting System (VAS) or accounting system
approved by the Ministry of Finance and in compliance with accounting policies for securities
firms issued by the Ministry of Finance and related guidelines. The company is subject to the
inspection of state agencies on the implementation of accounting - statistics policies.

2. The Company prepares accounting books in Vietnamese and keeps the records and
accounting books in line with the Company’s business activity. Records and accounting books
must be accurate, current, and complete to demonstrate and explain the Company's transactions.

Article 55. Audit

1. Annual financial statements, reports of prudential financial ratios as at December 31,
semi-annual financial statements, reports of prudential financial ratios as at June 30 of the
Company must be audited by an independent audit firm in accordance with regulations.

2. Independent audit firm and their staff performing the audit for the Company must be
first approved by the State Securities Commission. Annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall
designate an independent audit firm or approve the list of the independent audit firm and authorize
the Board of Directors to select one of these for conducting audit of the Company for the next
fiscal year based on the Terms and Conditions agreed with the Board of Directors. Securities
companies may not change the approved auditor within the fiscal year, unless the parent company
changes their approved auditor or the approved auditor is suspended or disqualified.

3. After the end of the fiscal year, the Company shall prepare and submit annual financial
statements to the independent audit firm. Independent auditing firm shall verify and certify the
Company’s annual financial statements showing the Company’s revenues and expenses, prepare
the audit report to submit to the Board of Directors within ninety (90) days from the end of the
fiscal year.

4. A copy of the audit report shall be attached to the Company’s annual financial
statements.
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Article 56. Principles of profit distribution

1. Every vyear, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall decide on the
payment/distribution of dividend, earnings and bonuses from retained earnings of the Company.

2. Where the payment of dividends or other payments relating to one class of share is made
in cash, the Company must make such payment in Vietnamese Dong. The payment may be made
directly or via banks based on bank details provided by shareholders. The payment of dividends
in respect of shares listed on the Stock Exchange may be made via a securities company or
Vietnam Securities Depository.

3. Date of closure of the list of shareholders and date of payment of dividends or bonus:

The Board of Directors shall make a decision on the date of closure of the list of
shareholders and date of payment of dividends or bonuses in accordance with the plan of the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Avrticle 57. Dealing with losses in business

Losses in the previous year shall be dealt with in the subsequent year if the Company
generates profit from its business in such subsequent year.

Article 58. Establishment of funds in accordance with regulations

1. Each year, the Company shall set aside an amount from the after-tax profits for
establishing the following funds:

a. Reserve fund for supplementing charter capital;
b. Reserve for finances and professional risks;

c. Reward and welfare fund;

d. Other funds stipulated by law.

2. The rate of contribution, limits of contribution and the management and use of the funds
set out in clause 1 of this article shall be implemented in accordance with the applicable laws.

Chapter VI
RESTRUCTURING, DISMISSAL AND BANKRUPTCY OF THE COMPANY

Article 59. Company Restructuring

1. The Company shall be consolidated, merged, or transformed upon approval of the State
Securities Commission.

2. The order and procedures for consolidation, merger or transformation shall follow the
Law on Enterprises, Law on Securities and relevant laws.

Article 60. Dismissal
1. The Company shall be dismissed or terminated in either of the following cases:
a. At the expiration of the term of operation of the Company, even after extension;

b. The General Meeting of Shareholders decides to dismiss the Company before expiration
and be approved by the State Securities Commission;

c. License on establishment and operation of the Company is revoked by SSC.

d. The Company does not have the minimum number of shareholders stipulated in Law on
Enterprise for a period of six consecutive months and does not conduct procedures to convert the
form of enterprise.
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e. Other cases prescribed by law.

2. The Company shall only be dismissed if all debts and liabilities can be settled and the
Company is not involved in any dispute at a court or arbitration tribunal.

3. The process, procedures and dossiers of dismissal shall follow the provisions of this
Charter, the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities and guiding documents.

Article 61. Bankruptcy
The bankruptcy of the Company shall follow the provisions of the law on bankruptcy of
enterprises operating in the fields of finance and banking.

Chapter VII
SUPPLEMENTATION AND AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER

Article 62. Supplementation and amendment to the charter

1. Amendments and supplementations to this Charter shall be considered and decided by
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Where the provisions of law relating to the Company’s operations are not mentioned in
this Charter or where new rules of law specifically regulating the operation of securities companies
conflict with the terms of this Charter, the provisions of law shall prevail and The Company’s
Charter shall be adjusted accordingly.

Chapter VIlI
EFFECTIVENESS

Article 63. Effective date

1. This Charter consists of eight (08) Chapters and sixty-three Articles and the whole text
was approved based on law.

2. This Charter is made into one (01) original copy.
3. This Charter is the official and original.

4. Any copy or extract of Charter shall be deemed valid if it is signed by the Chairman of
the Board of Directors or the General Director or a person duly authorized by the Chairman or the
General Director.

5. This Charter has been effective since ..../...../2023.
6. Signature of Legal representitive of the Company
(Sign, full name and stamp).
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CONG TY CP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE ~ CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION Poc lap - Tu do - Hanh phuc
_________________ SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
S§/No:  /2023/TT-HPQT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
HaNoi, [/ /2023 /Hanoi, , 2023

TO TRINH CUA HOI PONG QUAN TRI /PROPOSAL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

V/v: Trién khai va thuc hién kinh doanh chiing khoén phai sinh va hoat dong cung cap dich vu bu
trir, thanh toan giao dich chirng khoén phai sinh
Ref: Deploying and implementing the derivatives business and
derivatives clearing and settlement services

Kinh thwa Dai hoi,
To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

Hoi ddng Quan tri (“HPQT”) Cong ty C6 phan Chung khoén Pinetree (“Pinetree”) kinh trinh Dai
hoi ddng C6 dong Thuong nién ndm 2023 (“PHDCPD”[“Pai hgi”) xem xét va théng qua viéc trién
khai va thuc hién kinh doanh ching khoan phai sinh va hoat dong cung cép dich vu bu trir, thanh
toan giao dich ching khoan phéi sinh cua Pinetree nhu sau:

The Board of Directors (“BOD ") of Pinetree Securities Corporation (“Pinetree”) hereby submit
to the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“GMS”) for consideration and approval of
deploying and implementing the derivatives business and derivatives clearing and settlement
servicesof Pinetree as follows:

1. Théng qua viéc trién khai va thuc hién kinh doanh chiing khoan phai sinh va cung cap dich
vu b trir, thanh toén giao dich ching khoan phéi sinh khi dap wng du cac diéu kién theo
quy dinh phap luat, bao gom céc hoat dong sau:

Approval to the deployment and implementation of derivatives business and derivatives
clearing and payment services when satisfying conditions prescribed by laws, including the
following activities:

Thuc hién kinh doanh phai sinh: Bao gom Moi gisi chitng khoan phéi sinh, Tu doanh chiing
khoan phai sinh va Tu van dau tu chiing khoan phéi sinh.

Conduct derivatives business: Including the derivatives brokerage, derivatives trading and
derivatives investment consulting.

Thue hién hoat dong cung cip dich vu b trir, thanh toan giao dich ching khoan phéi sinh:
Bao gdom ky quy, d6i chiéu, xac nhan két qua giao dich, xir ly 13i, thé vi giao dich, bu tri,
xac dinh nghia vu thanh toan, chuyén giao tién hoic chuyén giao tién va tai san co so vao
ngay thanh toan, cac hoat dong khac lién quan.

Provide derivatives clearing and settlement services: Including making of margins,
comparison and certification of transaction results, handling of errors, trading replacement,
clearing, determination of payment obligations, transfer of money or transfer of money and
underlying assets on the date of payment, and other related activities.

Thuc hién céc hoat dong khéc lién quan dén chirng khoan phai sinh phu hop véi quy dinh
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phap luat.
Perform other activities relating to derivatives in accordance with the laws.

DHDCP giao va uy quyén cho Ong Lee Jun Hyuck — Tong Giam dbc kiém Nguoi dai dién
theo phap luat — duoc toan quyén quyét dinh, ky, ban hanh cac van ban lién quan va to chuc,
thuc hién toan bo cac cong viéc lién quan dén viéc trién khai, xin gidy phép va thuc hién cac
hoat d6ng néu tai Muc 1 trén, bao gdm nhung khong gigi han béi cac cong viéc nhu sau:

The GMS appoints and authorizes Mr. Lee Jun Hyuck — General Director cum Legal
Representatives - to have full authority to decide, sign and issue relevant documents, and
organize and perform all work related to the implementation and application for licenses
and implementation of activities mentioned in Section 1 above, including but not limited to
the following tasks:

Chuan bj cac diéu kién can thiét theo quy dinh cua phéap luat dé thuc hién cac hoat dong néu
tai Muc 1 caa To trinh nay.

Prepare necessary requirements as prescribed by law to perform activities mentioned in
Section 1 of this Proposal.

Xay dung, quyét dinh, t6 chac va thuc hién ké hoach trién khai; ky va ban hanh céc quy
trinh nghiép vu; t6 chirc nhan sy va thuc hién cac cong viéc khéac co lién quan dé thuc hién
cac hoat dong néu tai Muc 1 cua To trinh.

Develop, decide, organize and carry out the implementation plan; sign and issue operation
processes; organize personnel resources and perform other related tasks to implement
activities mentioned in Section 1 of this Proposal.

Quyét dinh Iya chon nghiép vu kinh doanh chitng khoan phai sinh cu thé va thoi diém trién
khai theo nhu cau cua Pinetree.

Decide and choose specific derivatives operations and time of deployment according to the
demand of Pinetree.

T4 chirc thyc hién céc thia tuc xin cap phép, dang ky cho cac hoat dong néu tai Muc 1 To
trinh nay tai Uy ban Ching khoan Nha nuéc va cac co quan, don vi ¢6 lién quan theo quy
dinh cua phép luat.

Organize the implementation of procedures for licensing and registration of activities
mentioned in Section 1 of this Proposal at the State Securities Commission and other
relevant agencies and units in accordance with the law.

Stra d6i, bo sung Piéu ¢ cia Pinetree va ky ban hanh nham b sung cac nghiép vu kinh
doanh sau khi duoc co quan c6 thim quyén cip phép va/hoic chap thuan.

Amend, supplement and sign the Charter of Pinetree for issuance in order to add business
operations after being licensed and/or approved by competent authorities.

T4 chirc thuc hién viéc béo céo, cong bd thong tin va céc tha tyc khac lién quan theo quy
dinh cua phap luat.

Organize the performance of reporting, information disclosure and related procedures as
prescribed by law.

Thuc hién cac cong viéc khac theo yéu cau caa co quan c6 tham quyén va/hoac phéat sinh tai
ting thoi diém dé trién khai va thuc hién cac hoat dong néu tai Muc 1 To trinh nay.



Carry out other tasks at the request of competent authorities and/or arising at from time to
time for deployment and implementation of activities mentioned in Section 1 of this
Proposal.

Kinh trinh Dai hoi xem xét va théng qua.

For the GMS’s consideration and approval.

TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Lee Jun Hyuck



CONG TY CP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE  CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION Péc l4p - Tu do - Hanh phic
----------------- SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

. Independence — Freedom — Happiness
So /No: [2023/TT-HBQT

HaNoi, / /2023 /Hanoi, ,2023

TO TRINH CUA HOI PONG QUAN TRI /PROPOSAL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

V/v: Mién nhiém thanh vién HDQT, BKS nhiém ky 2021-2023 va bau thanh vién HDQT, BKS nhiém ky 2023-
2026
Subject: Dismissal of members of BOD, BOS for the term of 2021-2023 and election of members of BOD, BOS for
the term of 2023-2026

Kinh thwa Pai hoi,
To: The General Meeting of Shareholders

Hoi dong Quan tri (“HPQT”) Cong ty C6 phan Ching khoan Pinetree kinh trinh Pai hoi dong
C6 dong Thuong nién nam 2023 (“Pai hgi”) xem xét va thong qua c&c noi dung lién quan dén
viéc mién nhiém thanh vién HPQT, Ban kiém soat (“BKS”) nhiém ky 2021-2023 va bau thanh
vién HPQT, BKS nhi¢m ky 2023-2026 nhu sau:

The Board of Directors (“BOD”) of Pinetree Securities Corporation hereby submit to the 2023
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“GMS ”) to approve on dismissal members of BOD,
Board of Supervisor (“BOS”) for the term of 2021-2023 and election of members of BOD, BOS
for the term of 2023-2026 as follows:

1. Thong qua viéc mién nhiém cac thanh vién HPQT, BKS nhiém ky 2021-2023.
Approval on the dismissal of members of BOD and BOS for the term of 2021-2023.

2. Thong qua viéc bau thanh vién HPQT, BKS nhiém ky 2023-2026.
Approval on the election of members of BOD and BOS for the term of 2023-2026.

3. Théong qua danh sach &ng vién dwgc dé cir, wng cir dé bau vao HPQT, BKS cho
nhiém ky 2023-2026 (theo tai li¢u DPai hoi).
Approval on the list of nominees/candidates for being elected to the BOD and BOS for the
term of 2023-2026 (according to the GMS’s documents ).

Kinh trinh Dai hoi xem xét va théng qua.
For the GMS’s consideration and approval.
TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Lee Jun Hyuck



CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Déc 1dp - Tw do - Hanh phiic

PON PE CU /NOMINATION SHEET
UNG VIEN THAM GIA HPQT/BKS /NOMINATION OF MEMBERS OF BOD/BOS
CTCP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE /PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION

Kinh giti:  BAN TO CHUC PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023
CONG TY CO PHAN CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE

To: THE 2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDER ORGANIZATION
COMMITTEE

PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION

TO1 180 18 (£ CHTC/CA MNAN): v.evvoeeeteeeeeee ettt ettt ettt e et en st n s s et s e st e s e n s nenees

CMND//HG chiéu/DKKD S6:.......coereererrererierrenann. Ngay CAP: cvvevvereereererians NOT CAP: ovvecveveeeeeeee e,

X0 [0 =TSR

Ngudi dai dién theo phap 1At (d01 VOT 10 CHIC): ...v.vvvvrereeieeeeese e se s ettt
Legal representative (fOr OrganiZation):........cccceiciiiiiiese et et e e e e e tearae s e e sneesneenreenreenes

Hién dang so hitu/dai dién: ........cccoovvviveveiinnn 0 Phan (BANG COTE: ...cvoveeeecievecee e, )

Tuong Gmg voi tong MENN Gid 18 (FONG): c..vveeveeveereererreieseseesee s ses st es st es st es st es st s st s sttt sn s
Corresponding to the total par Value (AONQ): ......oieeieeie ettt be e te e sreesreesreenreenes
T6i/Chiing téi dong y dé cir /Hereby nominate:

ONQG (BA): oot

CMTND 88! ovovvereievreeieseieiesses s s ses s ses s NEAY CAP: v, NOT CAP: ovvveeveevererereeree e

Trinh d6 NOC VAN: w..vocveveeeecveeeeee e CRUYEN NGANN: ..o
Education level: ... Y oY o] SRS U ST PP PEURPRPPRPRPN
Lam tng vién dé bau vao Hoi dong Quén tri (“HDQT”)/Ban Kiém soét (“BKS™) Cong ty C6 phan Ching khoan
Pinetree nhiém ky 2023-2026 trong ky Pai hoi dong c6 dong thuong nién nam 2023.

As candidate for member of the Board of Directors /Board of Supervisors (“BOS”) for term of 2023-2026 at the
2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Toi/ching t6i hoan toan chiu trach nhiém vé viéc dé cir nay va cam két tuan thi nghiém chinh cac quy dinh hién
hanh cta Phap ludt va ctia Diéu 1é Cong ty.

I/we hereby consent to my nomination for the election and am/are willingness to comply with existing regulations
of the law and the Company Charter.

Trén trong cam on /Best regards!

Cb ddng /Nominator
(Ky va ghi 15 ho tén, dong dau (néu co))
(Signature, full name and stamed (if any))

Nguoi dwge dé cir /Nominee
(Ky va ghi rd ho tén)
Signature, full name)

Tai liéu giri kem: /Attachments:
- Ban Théng tin ca nhan va Ban cung cip thdng tin do tmg vién ty khai (theo mau);
Curriculum vitae of Nominee;
- Ban sao CMND/CCCD/H®6 chiéu va cac bé“mg cép, van bang ching chi chting nhén trinh d6 van
ho4, trinh @6 chuyén mon cua Gmg vién.
Copy of ID card (or passport) and diplomas and certificates of Nominee;




Cong hoa xa hgi chi nghia Viét Nam
Doc 1ap - Tu do - Hanh phuc

BIEN BAN HOP NHOM /MINUTES OF SHAREHOLDERS GROUP
PE CU UNG VIEN THAM GIA HPQT/BKS /NOMINATION OF MEMBERS OF

BOD/BKS

CTCP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE /PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION

HOom nay, ngay _ / /2023, tai

Ching khoan Pinetree cuing nhau nim gitt ....... ¢ phan, chiém
quyén bi¢u quyét cua Cong ty, cd tén trong Danh sach dudi day:

Today, / /2023, at

together holding

with Name in the List below:

, chiing t6i 13 nhitng c6 dong cua Cong ty C6 phan
...... % trén tong s6 cO phan co

, We are shareholders of Pinetree Securities Corporation

shares, corresponding to ......% of the total voting shares of the Company,

£ S6 ¢ phan
: 50 s& hiru
Co dbng CMND/DKKD Dia chi Number of Ky tén
Shareholders ID/Passport/ Address owner’s Sign
License No
share
Téng cong
Total
cung nhit tri dé cir /Hereby nominate:
@] To T (=) OO U
NAME OF NOMINEE: ...ttt b ettt ettt s bt et e e b e st et et et e sbeebesbeeneane e
CMTND SO:ovoeeeereseereeeeenieninene, NEAY CAP: cvoververrrrerrrenen. NOT CAP: cvvveeeeeeeeeeeeee e
ID/Passport: ......ccccvevveeveeiie e Date of Issuance: ............. Place of Issuance: ........c.cccceevvvevunenne.
5 3= T o1 1§ PSP SRSUPRR
o [0TSR UURURRTRTRRN
Trinh d0 NOC VAN: w.voceveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, Chuyén nganh: ...
Education level: ..., MJOT: oo

lam Gmg vién dé bau vao Hoi dong quan trj (“HPQT”)/Ban kiém soat (“BKS”) Cong ty C6 phan
Chiung khoan Pinetree nhiém ky 2023-2026 trong ky Pai hoi dong c6 dong thuong nién nim
2023.




As candidate for member of the Board of Directors (“BOD ")/Board of Supervisors (“BOS”) for
term of 2023-2026 at the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Dong thoi ching t6i théng nhat cir /We also agree to appoint:

O To T (=) TR
NAME OF NOIMINEE: ...ttt b ettt bbbt b bt e st et et et bt be b e ne e
CMTND S8 vvoveeeernrereeeeerieniennen, NEAY CAP: .ovverereriririenes NOT CAP: wevvevereeereeeeeeiee e
ID/Passport: ......ccccoveveevvesiesieaiene Date of Issuance:............. Place of Issuance: ...........ccccoevvvennne.
D 3T o1 1§ SO SR PPRRSPRPRR
X6 0| =T PSSP PP
Hién dang s& hitu: .....c.ocooeviiiiiiiieee 0 phan (BANE Ch:...veoeeceecveeeeeeeeeeeee e, )
Number of shares owned:..........c.cccccevieenenn shares (IN WOrdS: .......ccocoveiveveiie e )
Tuong ng v6i tong ménh gid 14 (AONE): ...cevveveereereeeeieiieeeeeeeeeee e ee et
Corresponding to the total par value (dONQ): ........ccveiiriieie e

1am dai dién nhom dé thuc hién cac thu tuc dé ctr theo dung Quy ché T6 chirc, Biéu quyét va Bau
cu cia DPHDCD thuong nién nam 2023 CTCP Ching khoéan Pinetree.

as a group representative to implement the nomination procedures in accordance with the
Regulations on Organization, Voting and Election at the 2023 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Chung t6i hoan toan chiu trach nhiém vé viéc dé cir nay va cam két tuan thu nghiém chinh cac quy
dinh hién hanh cta Phap luat va ctiia Diéu 1é Cong ty.

I/we hereby consent to my nomination for the election and are willingness to comply with existing
regulations of the law and the Company Charter.

Bién ban nay duogc 1ap vao luc .... gio, ngay ...../...../2023 tai .............
This minute made at .. -... on ...../[...../2023.

Pai dién Nhém cd dong /Representative of Nominator
(Ky va ghi rd ho tén)
(Signature, full name)

Ngudi duge dé cir /Nominee
(Ky va ghi 15 ho tén)
(Signature, full name)

Tai liéu giri kém /Attachments::
- Ban cung cip thdng tin va Ban thong tin c& nhan do tmg vién ty khai (theo mau);
Curriculum vitae of Nominee;
- Ban sao CMND (hoic ho chiéu) va cac bang cp, van bang ching chi chimg nhan trinh d6 vin ho4, trinh d6
chuyén moén cua tng vién.
Copy of ID card (or passport) and diplomas and certificates of Nominee.




CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Doc 1ap - Tu do - Hanh phuc

BAN THONG TIN CA NHAN /CIRRICULLUM VITAE

Kinh gtri: - Cong ty C6 phan Chimg khoan Pinetree;
- Pai hoi dong c6 dong Cong ty;

To: - Pinetree Securities Corporation;
- The General Meeting of Shareholders;

Anh/Image
4x6

1)  Hovatén (in hoa):........ Gidi tinh:

Full name: ... ..... Gender:
2)  Ngay sinh:.......

Date of birth:
3)  Noisinh:

Place of birth:
4)  Qubc tich:

Nationality:
5)  S6 chimg minh nhin dan/cin cude cong dan/hd chiéu...... ngay cap...... noi
CAP....c... c6 gia tri dén ngay..... (d6i véi ho chiéu).

ID card No. (or Passport No.): ....... Date of issue....... Place of issue.........
valid until ..... (for passports).
6)  Noi dang ky ho khau thuong tra: s6 nha. .... khdi/xém/thon/.....phuong/xa. ...

quan/huyén. ... tinh/thanh phé. ...

7)

8)

9)

Permanent residence:

Chd 6 hién tai /Current address:

Nudc ngoai (d6i véi ngudi nudc ngoai):

For foreigner:

Viét Nam:

Vietnam:

Trinh d06 dai hoc: Co ] Khong ]
University education:  Yes [/ No /7
Nghé nghiép:

Job:



10)  Chung chi hanh nghé chimg khoan /Securities Certificate:

. s _— A S6 Chitng chi hanh M3 s6 nguoi hanh nghé
T Loai Chirng chi hzlmh nghé chirng ngh‘é Ngay cAp chirng khoan
khoan . .
No Tvoe of securities certificate Number of securities |Issuance date] Code of person with
yp certificate securities certificate
11)  Qua trinh lam viéc /Employment history:
TT Thoi gian (Thang/Nam) Noi lam v1§c‘giTéi;1 t0 chirc lam Chire vu Vi tri lam viéc
No Period Work.place Title Dept.
12) Nguoi co lién quan (1a nguoi c6 lién quan theo quy dinh ctia Luat Ching
khoéan):
List of related persons (based on 2019 Securities Law)
GCNDKKD (tb chirc)/ | Noi hoc
Tén newdi CMND, CCCD (Céng dan | tap/l1am Tén cong ty )
6 Iiéng uanl Mé&i auan Viét Nam)/ H§ chiéu viéc/ khac Vi tri chirng khoan [Ty 1€ nam
TT Name?of h‘é (Ngudi nuée ngqai) ngay Other cons vide Name of gitr (%)
No related  Relationshi cap, noi cap learning Posﬁtioh securities Ownership
erson P ID/Passport/License/ place/ companies rate (%)
P Business Registration No., | Work
date of issue, place of issue | place
13) Tén va dia chi phap nhan ma minh s& hiru c6 phan hoac ty 1¢ von gop dugc

dai dién:

Name and address of institutional what you represent, the percentage of
shares represented:

S6 lwong cb phiéu

oA a e om0 ]
T Té chirc gép vén Dia chi nim giir TY 1€ dai dién (%) | g 12 p2in wiie (%)
R . Representative rate .
No Instituational Number of holding Ownership rate (%)
Address shares (%)

Toi cam két va chiu trach nhiém vé tinh chinh xac, trung thuc cac ndi dung
néu trén.

| hereby certify that the information provided in this CV is true and correct
and I will bear the full responsibility to the law.
vy e 2021 . ,2021

Nguwoi khai /Declarant
(Ky, ghi 13 ho tén)

Xac nhén ciia Cong ty Co phian Chirng
khoan Pinetree



Confirming of Pinetree Securities (Signature, full name)
Corporation



CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Poc lap - Tw do - Hanh phuc
THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ha N¢i, ngay ... thang ... ndm 2023
......... ,day .... month ....year ........

BAN CUNG CAP THONG TIN/CIRRICULLUM VITAE

Kinh gvi: - Uy ban Chirng khoan Nha nuwéc
- S& Giao dich chirng khoan H6 Chi Minh
- S& Giao dich chirtng khoan Ha Néi
To: - The State Securities Commission
- Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange
- Hanoi Stock Exchange

1/ Ho va tén /Full name: ...

2/ Gigi tinh/Sex:...

3/ Ngay thang nam sinh/Date of birth: ...

4/ Noi sinh/Place of birth: ...

5/ S6 CMND (hoéc sb ho chiéu)/ID card No. (or Passport No.): ....Ngay cap/Date of issue ... Noi cap/Place of issue ....
6/ Qubc tich/Nationality:

7/ Dan toc/Ethnic:

8/ Dia chi thwdng tri/Permanent residence:

9/ S6 dién thoai/Telephone number:

10/ Dia chi email/Email:

11/ Tén té chirc 1a dbi twong cdng bd théng tin/ Organisation’s name subject to information disclosure rules:

12/ Chtre vu hién nay tai td chire 1a dbi twong cong bd théng tin/Current position in an institution subject to information disclosure Rules:
13/ Céac chire vu hién dang ndm git tai té chirc khac/Positions in others companies:

14/ S6 CP nam gil: ... cd phan, chiém ...% vén diéu &, trong d6:/Number of shares in possession ... stock , accounting for ...% of registered capital,
of which:



+ Dai dién (tén tb chirc 1a Nha nwdc/cd dong chién lvgc/té chirc khac) s& hivu:/Possess on behalf of (State/strategic investor/other institution): ... ¢b
phan.

+ Cé& nhan s& hiru/ Possess for own account: ... ¢d phan
15/ Cac cam két ndm gi (néu c6)/Other commitment of holding shares (if any): Khéng c6

16/ Danh sach ngwoi c6 lién quan cla ngudi khai'/List of related persons of declarant:

Thoi Thai
diémbge | Jiem . ;
Loai hinh Ty 16 56 dula khong Ly do (khi Ghi chu (vé
, Giky NSH o s | newdics | conta phatsinh | viée khong
Tai khoan Chire Mbi quan hé ™*) S6 ¢d hié Iiégn uan ngudi co thay doi c6 s0 Giay
giao dich -hue Vi bi véi cong (CMND/ . o phiéu s& prieu °n qu lienquan | lién quan NSH va
. tai cong ty N So bia chi try < P cuoi ky cua cong PR % 5 P
ching Fa ty/ nguoi ndi Passport/ & N L . hiru cuoi > | cuacong | dénmuc 13 cac ghi cha
~ . A (néu co) A .x Giay Ngay . % so chinh/ Dia N Percent ty/ nguoi N 5 .
Ma CK Ho tén khodn (néu | pogition at bo Gidy NSH cap | NOLCAP | i tien he ky ageof | moibp | Y/newdsi | vald) khdc)
Stt Securities : c6) Relationship DPKKD) - p Place y Number of g L ndi b Reasons Notes (i.e.
Name - the . *) Date of - Address of shares Time the X A
No. symbol Securities with the Type of . of issue ) shares Time the (when not in
. company NSH issue Head office owned person - -
trading - company/ documents( owned at person arising posession
. (if ) No. address at the became
accounts (if . internal ID/Passport/ the end of ceased changes of a NSH
. available) ) . end of an
available) person Business the period - to be an related to No. and
] . the affiliated - "
Registration eriod erson/ affiliated sections of other
Certificate) P p person/ 13 and 14) notes)
internal !
internal
person
person
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

17/ Loi ich lién quan dbi véi cdng ty dai ching, quy dai ching (néu c6) /Related interest with public company, public fund (if any):
18/ Quyén loi mau thuén véi cdng ty dai ching, quy dai ching (néu co) /Interest in conflict with public company, public fund (if any):

T6i cam doan nhirng I&i khai trén day 1a dung sw that, néu sai toi xin hoan toan chiu trach nhiém trwdc phap luat.
I hereby certify that the information provided in this cv is true and correct and | will bear the full responsibility to the law.

NGUOI KHAI /DECLARANT
(Ky, ghi rd ho tén)
(Signature, full name)

* Ngwdi ¢ lien quan theo quy dinh tai khodn 46 Diéu 4 Luat Chirng khoan ngay 26 thang 11 nam 2019 / Affiliated persons are stipulated in Article 4,
clause 46 of the Law on Securities dated 26th Nov 2019.




CONG TY CP CHUNG KHOAN PINETREE

PINETREE SECURITIES CORPORATION Doc lap — Ty do - Hanh phuc

_______________ SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

S6/No.:  /2023INQ-DHPCD e

HaNo¢i, [/ /2023 /Hanoi, , 2023

DU THAO /DRAFT

NGHI QUYET /RESOLUTION
PAI HOI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2023

2023 THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

- Can ctr Luat Doanh nghiép s6 59/2020/QH14 ngay 17/06/2020;
Pursuant to the Law on Enterprise No 59/2020/QH14 as at 17/06/2020;

- Can cir Luat Chimg khoan sé 54/2019/QH14 ngay 26/11/2019;
Pursuant to the Securities Law No 54/2019/QH14 as at 26/11/2019;

- Can ct Piéu 18 Cong ty C6 phan Ching khoan Pinetree (“Cong ty”);
Pursuant to the Charter of Pinetree Securities Corporation (“Company ”);

- Cin cir Bién ban hop Dai hoi dong C6 dong Thuong nién nim 2023 (“PHPCP”) ciia
Cong ty.
Pursgua):u to the Minutes of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“AGM ") of
the Company.

Diéu 1.

Diéu 2.

Diéu 3.

Diéu 4.

QUYET NGHI /RESOLUTION

Thong qua Quy ché To chirc, Biéu quyét va Bau cir tai PHPCD/ Approval on the
Organization, Vote and Elect Regulation at the AGM

DHDCP thong qua Quy ché Té chirc, Biéu quyét va Bau cir tai PHPCP dugc dinh
kém Nghi quyét nay.

The AGM has approved the Organization, Vote and Vote Regulation at the AGM
attached to this Resolution.

Thong qua Béo c&o cia Hoi dong Quan tri (“HPQT)/Approval on the report of the
Board of Directors (“BOD”):

DHDPCP thong qua B4o céo cia Hoi dong Quan tri dugc dinh kém Nghi quyét nay.
The AGM has approved the report of Board of Director attached to this Resolution.
Théng qua B&o cdo ciaa Tong Giam ddc /Approval on the report of the General
Direcotor:

DHDCP thong qua Béo cdo cua Tong Giam doc duoc dinh kém Nghi quyét nay.

The AGM has approved the report of General Director attached to this Resolution.

Théng qua Bé&o cdo cia Ban Kiém soat (“BKS”) /Approval on the report of the
Board of Supervisor (“BOS”):

DHDCP thong qua B4o céo cua Ban Kiém soat duoc dinh kém Nghi quyét nay.
The AGM has approved the report of the Board of Supervisor attached to this
Resolution.

CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM



Diéu 5.

Diéu 6.

Diéu 7.

Diéu 8.

Théng qua To trinh Téng hop ciia Hi dong Quan tri vé mdt sé ndi dung trong
hoat dong ciia Cong ty/Approval on the Proposal of the Board of Directors of some
operation contents of the Company:

DHDCPD théng qua To trinh Tong hop caa Hoi ddng Quan tri vé cac van dé sau:
The AGM has approved the Proposal of the Board of Directors of following contents:

Théng qua Bé4o co Tai chinh nim 2022 di kiém toan;
Approval on the 2022 audited financial statements;

Théng qua viéc Iya chon don vi kiém toan nam 2023;
Approval on appointment of the independent audit firm for the fiscal year 2023;

Thong qua sira d6i, bd sung Diéu 16 Cong ty C6 phan Ching khoén Pinetree;
Approval on amendments and supplementations to the Charter of Pinetree.

Théng qua chinh sach thu lao cho HDQT, BKS cho nam 2023,;
Approval on remuneration for the BOD, BOS for the year 2023;

Toan van To trinh Tong hop va tai liéu kém theo cia Hoi dong Quan tri dugec PHDCD
thong qua duoc dinh kém Nghi quyét nay.

The full version of the Proposal and related attached files of Board of Directors
approved by the AGM is attached to this Resolution.

Thong qua To trinh ciia Hi ddng quan tri vé trién khai va thyc hién kinh doanh
chirng khodn phai sinh va hoat dong cung cip dich vu bu trir, thanh toan giao
dich ching khoan phai sinh/ Approval on Proposal of the Board of Directors for
Deploying and implementing the derivatives business and derivatives clearing and
settlement services

DHDPCP thong qua To trinh duoc dinh kém Nghi quyét nay.
The AGM has approved the Proposal attached to this Resolution.

Thong qua Té trinh ciia Hoi dong Quan tri vé mién nhiém thanh vién HPQT,
BKS nhiém ky 2021-2023 va bau thanh vién HPQT, BKS nhiém ky 2023-2026/
Approval on Proposal of the BOD for Dismissal of members of BOD, BOS for the
term of 2021-2023 and election of members of BOD, BOS for the term of 2023-2026

DHDCDP thong qua To trinh duoc dinh kém Nghi quyét nay.
The AGM has approved the Proposal attached to this Resolution.

Thong qua thanh vién HPQT dwge mién nhi¢ém cia nhiém ky 2021-2023 va
thanh vién HPQT cua nhiém ky méi 2023-2026 nhw sau /Approval on dismissal of
members of BOD for the term of 2021-2023 and election of members of BOD for the
new term of 2023-2026, as follow:

Thanh vién HPQT nhiém ky 2021-2023 dwge mién nhi¢m /The dismissed member
of BOD for the term of 2021-2023:

Ho tén: Gidi tinh:
Full name: Gender:
Ngay sinh: Qudc tich:
Date of birth: Nationality:
CMND/CCCD/H® chiéu s6:

ID/Passport No.:



Diéu 9.

Piéu 10.

Thanh vién HPQT dwgc bau cho nhiégm ky 2023-2026 /The elected member of
BOD for the term of 2023-2026:

Ho tén: Gioi tinh:

Full name: Gender:

Ngay sinh: Qubc tich:

Date of birth: Nationality:

CMND/CCCD/Hb chiéu sb:
ID/Passport No.:

Thong qua thanh vién BKS dwec mién nhiém ciia nhiém ky 2021-2023 va thanh
vien BKS cia nhiém ky meéi 2023-2026 nhw sau /Approval on dismissal of
members of BOS for the term of 2021-2023 and election of members of BOS for the
new term of 2023-2026, as follow:

Thanh vién BKS dwge mién nhiém ciia nhiém ky 2021-2023 /The dismissed
member of BOS for the term of 2021-2023:

Ho tén: Gidi tinh:
Full name: Gender:

Ngay sinh: Qudc tich:
Date of birth: Nationality:

CMND/CCCD/H$ chiéu sb:
ID/Passport No.:

Thanh vién BKS dwgc bau cho nhiém ky 2023-2026 /The elected member of BOS
for the term of 2023-2026:

Ho tén: Gigi tinh:
Full name: Gender:

Ngay sinh: Qudc tich:
Date of birth: Nationality:

CMND/CCCD/H0 chiéu s6:
ID/Passport No.:

Hiéu luc thi hanh /Enforcement

Nghi quyét ndy c6 hiéu luc ké tir ngay ky. Hoi dong Quan tri, Tong Giam ddc, cac bo
phan va nhan sy lién quan trong Cong ty cd trach nhiém thi hanh ding Nghi quyét nay./.
This Resolution shall take effect on the issued date. Board of Directors, General
Director, all departments and employees of the Company are responsible for the proper
implementation of this Resolution./.

Noi nhan /Receipient: TM. PAI HOI PONG CO PONG

- Céc Cb dbng /Shareholders; FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE AGM
- UBCKNN, SGDCK, Website (d¢é¢ CBTT); CHU TQA/ CHAIRMAN
SSC, Stock Exchanges, Website (for
information disclosure)
- Nhu Diéu 8 /As stated in Article 8;
- Luu HC /Filed at HRGA



Lee Jun Hyuck
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